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2020
37,606,289 58.55
5,070,386 7.89
4,869,915 7.58
3,807,070 5.93
2,119,423 3.30
1,306,197 2.03
1,117,588 1.74
735,206 1.14
704,945 1.10
617,571 0.96
376, 130 0.59
357,489 0.56
339,868 0.53
157,780 0.25
83,822 0.13
548,216 0.85
416,489 0.65
244,921 0.38
113,029 0.18
60,592,334 94.34
3,637,127 5.66
6?36%29’461 100.00
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(2020
ARD FINANCE SA 5.000 | 2027/6/30 | 1,100,000 | 1,129,830 | 1,165,517 | 1.81
GEN ELECTRIC CO 5.000 1,388,000 | 1,342,764 | 1,067,476 | 1.66
ALTICE FRANCE SA 7.375 | 2026/5/1 997,000 | 992,183 | 1,050,115 | 1.63
NIDDA HEALTHCARE 3.500 | 2024/9/30 | 870,000 | 881,789 | 958,884 | 1.49
VICTORIA PLC 5.250 | 2024/7/15 | 850,000 | 861,210 [ 819,916 | 1.28
VIVION 3.000 | 2024/8/8 800,000 | 799,277 | 792,759 | 1.23
CHANGE HLD / FIN 5.750 | 2025/3/1 736,000 | 727,866 | 737,236 | 1.15
HEIMSTADEN BOSTA 3.248 700,000 | 700,000 | 735,206 | 1.14
IQVIA INC 2.250 | 2028/1/15 | 680,000 | 641,300 [ 733,285 | 1.14
10| MILLER HOMES GRP 5.500 | 2024710715 | 600,000 | 520,819 [ 727,404 | 1.13
11| LGI HOMES INC 6.875 | 2026/7/15 | 683,000 | 696,335 | 695,676 | 1.08
12| 21660 5.125 | 2030/2/28 | 663,000 | 668,533 | 681,130 | 1.06
13| CCO HOLDINGS LLC 5.375 | 2029/6/1 613,000 | 618,920 [ 661,927 | 1.03
14| VZ VENDOR 2.500 | 202471731 | 600,000 | 579,748 | 661,284 | 1.03
15| LABL ESCROW 1SS 10.500 | 2027/7/15 | 617,000 | 601,483 | 649,642 | 1.01
16 | FIRST QUANTUM 7.250 | 20237471 694,000 | 613,151 | 643,550 | 1.00
17| GREAT LAKES DRED 8.000 | 2022/5/15 | 622,000 | 623,666 | 636,626 | 0.99
18 | AUTOSTRADE PER L 5.875 | 2024/6/9 500,000 | 575,423 | 617,571 | 0.96
19| OLIVETTI FINANCE 7.750 | 2033/1/24 | 400,000 | 552,865 | 610,636 | 0.95
20| SABLE INTL FIN 5.750 | 2027/9/7 590,000 | 585,251 | 595,452 | 0.93
21| GOLDEN ENTERTAIN 7.625 | 2026/4/15 | 651,000 | 651,558 | 587,830 | 0.92
22| CCO HOLDINGS LLC 5.000 | 2028/2/1 559,000 | 533,728 | 586,774 | 0.01
23| MOLINA HEALTHCAR 4.375 | 2028/6/15 | 577,000 | 578,479 | 580,416 | 0.90
24| TEVA PHARM FNC 4.500 [ 2025/3/1 500,000 | 494,212 | 565,922 | 0.88
25| KRAFT HEINZ FOOD 3.750 | 2030/4/1 542,000 | 552,448 | 561,719 | 0.87
26 | DOLE FOOD CO 7.250 | 2025/6/15 | 589,000 | 571,361 | 561,697 | 0.87
27 | SURGERY CENTER 6.750 | 2025/7/1 614,000 | 536,363 | 560,978 | 0.87
28 | GRT WRN PTRL 9.000 | 202179730 | 863,000 | 812,480 | 552,320 0.86
29| XERO INVMNTS LTD 2.375 | 2023/10/4 | 400,000 | 401,022 | 548,216 | 0.85
30| CSC HOLDINGS LLC 7.500 | 2028/4/1 483,000 [ 520,123 | 536,326 | 0.84
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2020
(2012 31 4,831,981 519,582,917 105.52 11,347
(2013 31 9,792,913 1,053,031,935 118.15 12,705
(2014 31 23,144,502 2,488,728,300 125.45 13,490
(2015 31 21,277,278 2,287,945,703 127.19 13,677
(2016 31 9,869,910 1,061,311,422 122.58 13,181
(2017 31 9,407,131 1,011,548,796 138.44 14,886
(2018 31 10,205,790 1,097,428,599 145.28 15,622
(2019 31 6,992,435 751,896,536 143.79 15,462
(2020 31 6,099,557 655,885,364 159.67 17,169
2019 7,054,456 758,565,654 152.77 16,427
7,011,069 753,900,250 153.81 16,539
6,915,053 743,575,649 154.40 16,603
6,314,615 679,010,551 155.14 16,682
10 6,288,566 676,209,502 155.46 16,717
11 6,244,595 671,481,300 156.46 16,824
12 6,363,677 684,286,188 159.53 17,154
2020 6,099,557 655,885,364 159.67 17,169
5,912,953 635,819,836 156.22 16,798
4,765,421 512,425,720 130.41 14,023
4,974,962 534,957,664 137.65 14,802
5,018,517 539,641,133 143.33 15,412
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(2012 31 67,167,717 7,222,544,609 95.30 10,248
(2013 31 84,846,576 9,123,552,317 79.48 8,546
(2014 31 86,633,356 9,315,684,771 56.07 6,029
(2015 31 64,644,688 6,951,243,301 40.37 4,341
(2016 31 31,066,828 3,340,616,015 20.50 2,204
(2017 31 41,614,154 4,474,769,980 27.36 2,942
(2018 31 23,776,104 2,556,644 ,463 26.69 2,870
(2019 31 14,324,094 1,540,269,828 20.00 2,151
(2020 31 10,515,051 1,130,683,434 15.86 1,705
2019 13,071,621 1,405,591,406 18.84 2,026
13,222,077 1,421,769,940 19.08 2,052

11,877,689 1,277,207,898 17.19 1,848

11,576,317 1,244,801,367 16.87 1,814

10 11,749,483 1,263,421,907 17.27 1,857

11 11,009,107 1,183,809,276 16.24 1,746

12 11,385,496 1,224,282,385 17.12 1,841

2020 10,515,051 1,130,683,434 15.86 1,705
9,511,219 1,022,741,379 14.42 1,551

6,706,887 721,191,559 10.20 1,097

6,578,357 707,370,728 10.03 1,079

6,706,651 721,166,182 10.33 1,111
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(2012 31 ) 23,256,386 2,500,759,187 99.56 10,706
(2013 31 ) 24,605,099 2,645,786,295 93.92 10,099
(2014 31 ) 28,886,284 3,106,142,119 74.16 7,974
(2015 31 ) 22,846,037 2,456,634,359 62.42 6,712
(2016 31 ) 9,937,453 1,068,574,321 39.38 4,235
(2017 31 ) 10,774,351 1,158,565, 963 46.83 5,036
(2018 31 ) 10,929,376 1,175,235,801 46.83 5,036
(2019 31 ) 8,577,723 922,362,554 35.01 3,765
(2020 31 ) 6,174,194 663,911,081 27.88 2,998
2019 7,612,002 818,518,575 32.62 3,508
7,485,368 804,901,621 32.27 3,470

6,914,641 743,531,347 29.89 3,214

6,811,770 732,469,628 29.45 3,167

10 6,808,785 732,148,651 29.58 3,181

11 6,630,724 713,001,752 28.81 3,098

12 6,767,715 727,732,394 30.03 3,229

2020 6,174,194 663,911,081 27.88 2,998
5,632,800 605,694,984 25.48 2,740

4,095,303 440,367,932 18.58 1,998

4,284,571 460,719,920 19.03 2,046

4,298,358 462,202,436 20.01 2,152
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(2012 31 105,743,395 7,544,791,233 102.87 7,340
(2013 31 174,908,795 | 12,479,742,523 105.79 7,548
(2014 31 264,203,888 | 18,850,947,409 102.52 7,315
(2015 31 298,385,862 | 21,289,831,254 94.30 6,728
(2016 31 157,952,934 | 11,269,941,841 81.04 5,782
(2017 31 141,516,180 | 10,097,179,443 79.87 5,699
(2018 31 116,274,709 8,296,200,487 72.14 5,147
(2019 31 80,235,438 5,724,798,501 59.08 4,215
(2020 31 68,632,274 4,896,912,750 52.45 3,742
2019 77,989,697 5,564,564,881 57.44 4,098
76,612,770 5,466,321,140 56.78 4,051

75,666,200 5,398,783,370 55.91 3,989

74,195,957 5,293,881,532 55.11 3,932

10 72,576,293 5,178,318,506 54.15 3,864

11 71,186,070 5,079,126,095 53.46 3,814

12 70,920,081 5,060,147,779 53.44 3,813

2020 68,632,274 4,896,912,750 52.45 3,742
65,507,844 4,673,984,669 50.29 3,588

51,391,384 3,666,775,248 40.83 2,913

52,833,542 3,769,673,222 41.97 2,995

53,901,019 3,845,837,706 43.12 3,077
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2020 2020
4.65 500
18.60 2,000
18.60 2,000
17.55 1,887
10.20 1,097
4.20 452
3.60 387
3.60 387
3.60 387
2020 0.30 32
0.30 32
0.30 32
0.10 11

53/206



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

3.00 323
12.00 1,290
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12.00 1,290
11.40 1,226
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7.20 774

7.20 774

2020 0.60 65

0.60 65

0.60 65

0.20 22

3.00 214
12.00 856
12.00 856
12.00 856
12.00 856
12.00 856
12.00 856
12.00 856
12.00 856

2020 1.00 71

1.00 71

1.00 71
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47,518 1,725 45,793
47,518 1,725 45,793
83,891 46,800 82,884
83,891 46,800 82,884
152,826 51,218 184,492
152,826 51,218 184,492
79,839 97,043 167,288
(79,839) (97,043) (167,288)
1,705 88,478 80,515
(1,705) (88,478) (80,515)
15,575 28,139 67,951
(15,575) (28,139) (67,951)
18,026 15,726 70,251
(18,026) (15,726) (70,251)

990 22,613 48,628
(990) (22,613) (48,628)
780 11,207 38,201
(780) (11,207) (38,201)
779,749 74,922 704,827
779,749 74,922 704,827
722,147 359,497 1,067,477
722,147 359,497 1,067,477
820,449 342,710 1,545,216
820,449 342,710 1,545,216
499,795 443,798 1,601,213

(499,795) (443,798) (1,601,213)
240,258 325,943 1,515,528

(240, 258) (325,943) (1,515,528)
391,819 386,546 1,520,801

(391,819) (386,546) (1,520,801)
133,309 763,230 890,880

(133,309) (763,230) (890, 880)
5,040 179,750 716,170
(5,040) (179,750) (716,170)
3,801 57,052 662,919
(3.801) (57,052) (662,919)

59/206




EDINETOOOO

OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)

Ooooooooooooooooooad

241,405 7,804 233,601
241,405 7,804 233,601
198,337 169,959 261,979
198,337 169,959 261,979
236,846 109,288 389,537
236,846 109,288 389,537
80,512 104,052 365,997
(80,512) (104,052) (365,997)
15,285 128,916 252,366
(15,285) (128,916) (252, 366)
59,015 81,283 230,098
(59,015) (81,283) (230,098)
43,095 39,803 233,390
(43,095) (39,803) (233,390)
57,790 46,180 245,000
(57,790) (46,180) (245,000)

0 23,558 221,442

(0) (23,558) (221,442)
1,056,244 28,297 1,027,947
1,056,244 28,297 1,027,947
1,776,422 1,150,980 1,653,389
1,776,422 1,150,980 1,653,389
1,836,246 912,454 2,577,181
1,836,246 912,454 2,577,181
1,671,181 1,083,968 3,164,394

(1,671,181) (1,083,968) (3,164,394)

138,772 1,354,284 1,948,882
(138,772) (1,354,284) (1,948,882)
293,003 470,317 1,771,658
(293,093) (470,317) (1,771,658)
411,754 571,734 1,611,678
(411,754) (571,734) (1,611,678)
51,948 305,515 1,358,111
(51,948) (305,515) (1,358,111)
89,228 138,708 1,308,631
(89,228) (138,708) (1,308,631)
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1,000 10,000 2.2 2.0
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2020 31

2020 31 2019 31
4,845,657 521,053 2,647,369 284,672
890,000 95,702 340,000 36,560
85,589,500 9,203,439 104,654,180 11,253,464
26,589 2,859
165,122 17,756 1,633,151 175,613
1,072,789 115,357 1,643,208 176,694
1,214,384 130,583 2,845,648 305,993
93,777,452 10,083,889 113,790,145 12,235,854
5,147,882 553,552 2,884,558 310,177
2,736,547 294,261 495,706 53,303
48,322 5,196
161,114 17,325 210,313 22,615
93,225 10,024 113,237 12,176
16,674 1,793 22,014 2,367
36,559 3,931 44,406 4,775
74,000 7,957 74,500 8,011
3,407 366 4,128 444
2,271 244 2,752 296
755 81 750 81
8,272,434 889,535 3,900,686 419,441
85,505,018 9,194,355 109,889,459 11,816,414
93,777,452 10,083,889 113,790,145 12,235,854

2020 12
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2020 31
2020 31 2019 31
5,283,004 568,081 7,383,370 793,934
3,204,551 344,585 (6,960,043) (748,413)
(3,708,870) (398,815) 763,547 82,104
(4,080,616) (438,789)  (12,619,376) (1,356,962)
2,129,481 228,983 (3.425,878) (368,385)
5,513 593
56,704 6,097 (8,513) (915)
2,889,767 310,737 (14,866,893) (1,598,637)
686,323 73,800 946,887 101,819
400,549 43,071 540,766 58,149
78,551 8,447 107,437 11,553
38,923 4,185 42,143 4,532
157,078 16,891 212,065 22,803
19,103 2,054 16,263 1,749
69,648 7,489 70,933 7,627
24,680 2,654 59,837 6,434
1,474,855 158,591 1,996,331 214,665
1,414,912 152,145 (16,863,224) (1,813,302)
(18,078,855) (1,944,019)  (23,737,648) (2,552,509)
(14,117) (1,518) (8,934) (961)
(16,678,060) (1,793,392)  (40,609,806) (4,366,772)
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4,314,900 463,981
(12,021,281) (1,292,648)
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2020 31
2020 31 2019 31
(16,678,060) (1,793,392)  (40,609,806) (4,366,772)
18,078,855 1,944,019 23,737,648 2,552,509
(2,129,481) (228,983) 3,425,878 368,385
(3,204,551) (344,585) 6,960,043 748,413
3,708,870 398,815 (763,547) (82,104)
340,305 36,593 449,683 48,354
(550,000) (59,142) (340,000) (36,560)
570,419 61,337 950,928 102,253
(49,199) (5.290) (306,122) (32,917)
(20,012) (2,152) (74,344) (7,994)
(7,847) (844) (29,155) (3,135)
(5,340) (574) (14,007) (1,506)
(500) (54) (7.,001) (753)
(481) (52) (6,983) (751)
(721) (78) (2.626) (282)
5 1 750 81
52,262 5,620 (6,628,661) (712,780)
(135,826,379)  (14,605,411)  (105,986,750)  (11,396,755)
163,779,376 17,611,196 151,380,788 16,277,976
27,952,997 3,005,786 45,394,038 4,881,221
4,341,487 466,840 6,110,355 657,046
(12,069,603) (1,297,844)  (28,923,174) (3,110, 109)
(18,078, 855) (1,944,019)  (23,737,648) (2,552,509)
(25,806,971) (2,775,024)  (46,550,467) (5,005,572)
2020 31 2019 31
2,198,288 236,382 (7,785,090) (837,131)
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2,647,369 284,672 10,432,459 1,121,802
4,845,657 521,053 2,647,369 284,672
5,853,423 629,419 8,334,298 896,187

14,117 1,518 8,934 961
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2020 31

2011 29
2011 29
2011 15
1107 694 25

2011
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2020 31
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90

97.2 2019 97.5 2.5 2019
2019

57.3 11.0

144
42,105,801 41,681,920 2020 31
30 2049 12 31 2019 2019 2079 30
12.00
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2011

0.51
2011 29

0.01

3,750 30

2011

0.08
11,250
2011
0.755
0.47
2011
0.015

2011

0.20
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2011 29
0.01 3,750
2020 31 2019 31
5,623,309 7,833,052
152,042 128,927
(492,347) (578,609)
5,283,004 7,383,370
2020 31 2019 31
11,231,726 13,210,126
1,088,500 2,362,365
1,158,317 2,811,212
414,159 739,994
2,493,042 2,906,132
1,693,111 1,707,819
18,078,855 23,737,648
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HYUSDUSD
HYUSDBRL
HYUSDBS1
HYAUDAUD
HYJPYJPY
HYJPYBS1
HYJPYBRL

10,000
2020 31
HYAUDAUD 1,358,111 89,228 (138,708) 1,308,631  52.45
HYJPYBRL 337,708 12,455 (29,800) 320,363 1,837.93
HYJPYBS1 256,288 6,486 (43,400) 219,374 2,810.26
HYJPYJPY 99,766 3,202 (21,100) 81,868 7,475.15
HYUSDBRL 716,170 3,801 (57,052) 662,919  15.86
HYUSDBS1 245,000 (23,558) 221,442  27.88
HYUSDUSD 48,628 780 (11,207) 38,201 159.67
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2019 31
HYAUDAUD 1,611,678 51,948 (305,515) 1,358,111  59.08
HYJPYBRL 376,074 24,634 (63,000) 337,708 2,245.36
HYJPYBS1 319,236 10,552 (73,500) 256,288 3,325.59
HYJPYJPY 115,194 3,772 (19,200) 99,766 7,296.13
HYUSDBRL 890,880 5,040 (179,750) 716,170  20.00
HYUSDBS1 233,390 57,790 (46,180) 245,000 35.01
HYUSDUSD 70,251 990 (22,613) 48,628 143.79
2020 31 2019
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2020 31
2020 31 10
8,558,950 2019 10,465,418
2020 31 10
8,558,950 2019 10,465,418
2020 31
2020 31
100
2020 31
2020 31 2019 31
10 * 10 *
305 31 189,399 18,940
2,338,999 233,900 (20,733) (2,073)
2,339,304 168,666
*2020 31 10
2020 31 10
10
*

517,270
5,069,844
362,459
1,820,937
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2019 31 10
10
586,202
6,314,140
492,771
2,347,168
*
10 10
2020 31 31,190,706 48,444,896 5,953,898 85,589,500
2019 31 23,116 42,175,033 52,462,171 9,993,860 104,654,180
31 100
4,371,889 2019 8,438,493
100 4,147,776 2019 7,547,786

91/206



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

92/206



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2020 31 2019 31
4,059,407 4.75 3,756,532 3.59
6,600,176 7.71 17,445,745 16.67

11,483,083 13.42 15,545,095 14.85
12,823,171 14.98 11,433,570 10.93
7,816,969 9.13 9,603,258 9.18
17,960,166 20.98 17,761,004 16.97
11,237,778 13.13 14,751,075 14.10
6,537,830 7.64 6,489,624 6.19
1,304,158 1.52 2,225,330 2.12

403,284 0.47 0.00
2,962,197 3.46 3,019,739 2.89
83,188,219 97.19 102,030,972 97.49

737,332 0.87 223,460 0.21

368,722 0.43 0.00
1,073,127 1.25 1,294,036 1.24
2,179,181 2.55 1,517,496 1.45

222,100 0.26 1,105,712 1.06

222,100 0.26 1,105,712 1.06
85,589,500 100.00 104,654,180 100.00

2019

12
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2020 2019 31 90

2020 2019 31

1970

13
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2020 2019 31

2020 2019 31

2020 2019 31

30
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2020
165,122 165,122
165,122

2019
1,633,151 1,633,151
1,633,151
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® D iy
2020
62,667 62,667
5,438 5,438
14,276 6,090 8,186
16,325 16,325
65,336 3,014 62,322
896 896
184 184
165,122 93,534 71,588
2019
539,935 22,324 517,611
7,804 7,239 565
255,225 28,208 227,017
3,505 3,505
31,816 31,816
793,567 4,209 789,358
692 388 304
10 607 607
1,633,151 97,689 1,535,462
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2020
2,736,547 2,736,547
2,736,547

2019
495,706 495,706
495,706
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® GD iy
2020
1,137,419 62,667 890,000 184,752
55,692 5,438 50,254
6,090 6,090
1,394,808 1,394,808
71,541 16,325 55,216
3,014 3,014
97 97
10 67,886 67,886
2,736,547 93,534 890,000 1,753,013
22,324 22,324
88,499 88,499
7,239 7,239
28,208 28,208
104,908 3,505 101,403
66,023 31,816 34,207
4,209 4,209
388 388
173,908 173,908
495,706 97,689 398,017
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10
11
2019 31

12

2020 2020 12 403,078 3,166,931

5,463,705
2020 COVID-19
CovVID-19
COVID-19
2020 12
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GLOBAL HIGH YIELD BOND FUND CURRENCY SELECTION
TRUST OF DIAM CA

ATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ITI

AS AT JANUARY 31, 2020
{Expressed in United States doilars)

Janwary 31, 2020 Januwary 31, 2019

Assels
Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 2 and 8) § 4845657 S 2,647369
Margin 890,000 340,000
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Notes 3 and 3) 835,589,500 104 654,180
Subzcriptions receivable - 26,589
Unrealised gain on forward currency contracts (Note 8) 155,122 1,633,151
Interest aocrisl 1,072,789 1,643,208
Receivable from imvesiments sold 1,214,384 2,845,648
Tolal asseis b3 93,777,452 - § 113,790,145
Liahilities
Payable for investments purchased b 5,147,882 5 2,884 558
Unrealised boss on forward currency contracts (MNote £) 2,736,547 495 706
Redemptions payahle - 48322
Investment management fee pavable (Mate 4) 161,114 210,313
Digtributor fee payable (Mote 4) 93,225 113,237
Administration fee payable (Note 4) 16674 22014
Agent fee payable (Note 4) 16,559 44,406
Audit fee payable 74,000 74,500
Custody fee payeble (MNote 4) 3407 4,128
Trustee fiee payeble (Mote 4) 2271 2,752
Other fee pavable 733 750
Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to Unitholders) 8272434 3,900,688
Wet assets attributable to Unitholders 85505018 109,889,459
Total liabilities 5 93,777,452 $ 113,790,145

Approved for issuanee on behall of CIBC Bank and Trust Company {Cayman) Limited, not in its individual capacity
but solely as Trustee to Global High Yield Bond Fund Currency Selection, a series trust of DIAM Cayman Trust by

Ronnie Cuthbert Diate: Fune 12, 2020

Jeovy Mateum

Approved for issuance on behall of Queensgate Bank and Trust Company Ltd., not in its individus] eapacity but
solely as Manager to Global High Yield Bond Fund Currency Selection, a series trust of DIAM Cayman Trust by:

Karla Bodden Dates June 12, 2020
Sinead Wegrer

The accompanying notes are an integral past of these financial statements,

K
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GLOBAL HIGH YIELD BOND FUND CURRENCY SELECTION

A SERIES TRUST OF DIAM CAYMAN TRUST

STATEMENT OF COM

¥YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 2020

(Expressed in United States dollars)

Year ended Year ended
_fanuary 31,2020 January 31,2819

Investment income/(losses)
Interest from financial assets at fair valoe through

profit or loss (Note 5) 3,283 004 5 7383370
Net change in worealised appreciation/(depreciation) on

financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 3,204,551 (6,960,043
Met change in wnrealised {depreciation) appreciation on forward

currency coniracts {3, 7088700 T63,547
Met realized loss on forvard currency contracts and foreign

e hange transactions (4.080516) (12.6193T76)
Wet realised gain'(loss) on financial assets ab fair value through

profit or loss 2,129,481 (3,425,878)
Mividend income 5513 -
Other income/{losses) 56,704 (8513}

Total incomei{losses) 2,880 767 (14_866,893)
Expenses
Imvestment monagement fee (Note 4) 686,323 246,887
Distributor fee (Mote 4) 400,549 340,766
Administration fee (Note 4) 78,551 107,437
Custedy fes (Mote 4) 38,923 42,143
Agent fee (Note 4) 157,078 212,065
Trustee fee (Mote 4) 19,103 16,263
Amdit fee 69,648 70,933
Other expenses 24,680 59,837

Total operating expenses 1,474 855 1,996,331

Net operating income/{losses) 1,414,912 (16,863,224)
Finance costs
Distributions o Unithalders (Mote 6) (18,078,855) (23,737 648)
Taxation
Withholding tax (14,117} {8,934

Net deerease in net assets resulting from operations
attributable to Unitholders

The accompanying notes are & integral part of these financial statements,

5
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GLOBAL HIGH YIELD BOND FUND CURRENCY SELECTION
A SERIES TRUST OF DIAM CAYMAN TRUST

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
ATTRIE ] i

YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 2024

(Expressed in United States dolbars)

Balance as at Janeary 31, 2008

Units subscribed during the vear

Units redeemed during the vear

Met decrease in net agsels fromopemtions attrbutable to Unitholders
during the year

Balance as at January 31, 2019

Uity subscribed during the year

Linits redecmed during the year

Met decrease i net agsets from operations anmbutable to Unithokders

during the year

Balance as at January 31, 2020

The accompanying nodes are an integral part of these fnancial statements.

=
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Net aszefs

attributable 1o

Unitholders

173,155,336

6118228
(28, 774,299)

(0,609, 506}

108, 5R9, 459

4,314,900
(12,021,281)

(16,678,060)

85,505,018
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GLOBAL HIGH YIELD BOND FUND CURRENCY SELECTION
ASERIES TRUST OF DIAM CAYMAN TRUST

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 2020
{Expressed in United States dollars)

Year ended Year ended
Jamwary 31, 2020  January 31, 2019
Caih lows frowm operating activities
Net decrease m net assets resulting from operztions
attrinstable to Ungholders 5 (166780600 3 {0,604, 506)

Adpestments to recancile net decrease in nel assel resulimg
from operations to net cash provided byvofused in) operating aciivites:

Distrivtons to Unitholders 18,078,855 23,T3T648
Net realised {gain)loss on financial assets at fafr value though profit of kss (2 120.481) JAZ5BTE
Met change in inrealeed (apprecition)'deprecintion oa
fioancial nszcts at fivir vahss though profit or loss 3,204,551} 560,043
Met change in unrealsed deprecintion{appreciation) on forward currency contracts 3708870 (T63.547)
Met amoriization of premiom 340,305 449 583
Changes in assets and habilites relred to operations;
Increase in margin (550,000) {340,000
Diecrease in mlesect accmsl 570419 B50928
Drecrease i mvestment management fee payable 49,159 ([ 306,0122)
Decreasze n dstributer fise payable {20412) {T4.344)
Decroase o apent (e payable (7847 {29,155)
Decrease m admmxinaton fee pavable (5340 {14,007
Dhocrease i audit fee payeble (30) {7.001)
Drecrease in trustee fee puyabl (481} (B.983)
Drecrease i cusiody fee payable {721y (LA26)
Increase m other fee payable 5 750
Net cash provided by/{used in) ope rating sctivites 52262 (6528,661)
Cash Bows from mvesting activites
Purchases of fmancal assers at fair value deough profit or kes (135,826379) {105,586, T50)
Proceeds from sale of financial assets ar fay valos trough profit or bes 163,779,376 151 380,738
Metcash provided by investing activities 2795299 45,394,008
Cash Bows From fnancieg activities
Procesds from subscrptions ¢ Unitholders 4,341 487 6,110,355
Redenptions paid to Unitholders {12,065,60%) (28513,174)
Distribmtions paid to Unithelders {18,078.855) (23,737,48)
Met cash used in financing sctivities (25 206971) (46550467
Nei change i cash and cash equivalkents 3 198508 {7.785,000)
Cazh and cash equnvalents at beginning of year 1647360 10,432,459
Cash and cash ¢ quivalents at end of year 5 4F4565T § 1547 568
Supplemental disclosure of conb Tow information:
Interest recemed 5 5253423 % F334,208
Taxes paid 3 14117 § 8934

The accompanying notes are an integreal part of these financial statements.

iTs
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(BAL HIGH YI1EL bl N LECTION
<) 1 UST

TATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 2020

1, Orpsnization

DIAM Cayman Trust (the “Trust™) is an exempted unit trust established under the laws of the Cayman [slands purtuant
to declaration of trust (the *“Trust Deed™) dated June 29, 2011, The Trust commenced opergtions on June 29, 2011,
The Trust is registered under the Cayman [slands Mutual Funds Law with effect from July 15, 2001, The Trust's place
of business is 25 Main Street, P.O. Box 694, Grand Cayman KY 1-1 107, Cayman Islands,

The Trust filed a securities registration statement on July 8, 201 1 purswant to the Financial Instrament Exchange Law
with the Director of the Kanto Local Finance Burean and a registration statement pursuant to the Investment Trust
Law with the Commissioner of the Financial Services Agency,

Gilobal High Yield Bond Fund Currency Selection (the “Class Fund™) i o series trust of the Trust. The investment
ohjective of the Class Fund is to seek high current income and the oppartunity for capital appreciation mainly though
investment in a diversified portfolio of global high vield bonds. The Class Fund will follow a bottom-up approach
based on a fundamental analysis when selecting glohal high vield bords,

2. Sigmiflcant aceonnti Ikei

The principal accounting policies applied m the preparation of these financial statements are sel out below. Thess
policies kave been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation: The fimancial statements of the Class Fund have been prepared in accordance with Intemational
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board, The financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of financial assets
and financial liabilities (including derivative financtul instruments) at fair value through profit or loss.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates, It also requires the Tristes to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Class Fund's accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Motes 2, 8 and 9.

All references (o net assets throughout this decument refer to net assets attributable to holders of Panicipating Units
unless otherwise stated. Met assets per unit information as disclosed in Note 7 has been determined as total assets less
total liabilities divided by the number of cutstanding units of each class of participating uniis,

fa} Standards and amendmens to existing standards effective February 1, 2019

There are no standards, amendments 10 standards or interpeetations that are effective for annual periods beginning on
February 1, 2019 that have a material effect on the financial statements of the Class Fund,

{5} New standards, amendments and imterpretaions issued but not effective for the financial year beginming Febrnary
1, 2019 aned new early adopted

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual periods beginning

after February 1, 200019, and have not been early adopted in preparing these financial statements. Mone of these are
expected to have a material effect on the financial statements of the Class Fund,
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KROTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JARY 31, 2020

faj Classification

Assets

The Class Fund classifies its investments based on both the Class Fund's business model for managing thess financial
assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. The portfolio of financial assels is managed
and performance is evaluated on a fair value hasiz, The Class Fund is primarily focused on fair value information and
uses that information to assess the assets’ performance and to make decisions, The contractual cosh flaws of the Class
Fund's debt securities are solely principal and interest, however, these securities are neither beld for the purpose of
collecting contractoal cash flows nor beld both for collecting contractual each flows and for sale. The collection of
contractual cash flows is only incidental 1o achieving the Class Fund®s business model's objective. Consequently, all
investments are measured at fair vahie through profit or loss.

Liabilities
Derivative contracts that have a negative fair value are presented as labilities at fuir value threugh profit or loss.

The Class Fund's policy requires the Investment Manager and Trustee to evaluate the information about these financial
assets and liabilities on a fair value basis together with their related financial information, for the purposes of making
mnvestrent management decisions,

(&) Recognitfon, derecogeition and measuremién

The Class Fund reconds security transactions on a trade date basis, recognizing the cost or sales proceeds of securities
sold or purchased on a first-in-first-out basis. Regulur purchases and sales of investments are recognised on the trade
date — the date on which the Class Fund commits to purchase or sell the investment. Financial assets at fair vahe
through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value.

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights fo receive cash flows from the imvestments have expired or the
Class Fund has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Subsequent to initial recognition, all financial assets at fair value throogh profit or boss are measured a1 fir vale.
Gaing and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the *financial assets at fair valse through profit or loss®
category are presented in the statement of comprehensive income in the period in which they arise,

o) Fair valwe estimation

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to mansfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The Gir value of financial assets traded in active markets (such
as publicly traded derivatives and irading securities) are based on quotations provided by the market on which the
securities are wraded on the last day of trading in the period. The Class Fund utilises the last iraded market price for
financial aszets where the last truded price falls within the bid-ask spread. [n cireumstances where the last traded price
is ot within the bid-ask spread, management will determine the point within the bid-ask spread thar i most
representative of fair value.

Investments or other assets for which market quotations are not readily available from recopnized price vendors will
be valued by prices fumished by investment services firms (such as brokers, dealers or other entities) or at their fair
value a5 determined in good faith in accordance with the procedures adopted by the Trustee with the advice from the
Sub-Investment Manager. Premiums and discounts are amortised on an effective interest yield method 1o the maturity
of the mvestments to which they relate.
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LOBAL HIGH ¥ ND CURRENCY SELECTION
F DIAM CAYMAN TRUST
ANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 2020

{d) Transfers berween levels of the falr value ferarchy

Transfers bebacen levels of the fair value hiersrchy are deemed o have occurred at the beginning of the reporting
period.

Cash and cash eguivalents: Cash and cash equivalents include all cash on demand and on short notice and all deposits
with eriginal terms to maturity of not more than 3 months, All of the Class Fund's cash and cash equivalent balance
as at Japuary 31, 2020 is maintained with the Custodian of the Class Fund (Note 4).

Margin: Margin incledes margin cash held agamst the Class Fund®s currency forwards.
Expenges: Expenges are accounted for on an accruals basis,

Interest income and interest from cinl & fuir value th i : Interest is recognised on a
time-proportionate basis using the effective interest method. Interest income includes interest from cash and cash
equivalents, Interest from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss includes interest from debt securities,

Income taxes: Under the cumrent laws of the Cayman Islands, there are no income, estate, transfer sales or other
Cayman Island taxes payable by the Class Fund. As a result, no provision for income taxes has been made in the
financial siatements, Interest income eamed by the Class Fund is gencrally subject to forcign withhalding tax at scurce,
Withholding taxes on interest is shown 4% o separate line item in the Statement of Compeehensive Income,

The Class Fund invests in securities issued by entities which are virtaally all domiciled in countries other than the
Cayman [slands, Many of these foreign countries have tax laws which indicate that capital gaing taves may be
applicable to non-residents, such as the Class Fund. Typically, these capital gaing taxes are required to be détermined
on & self assessment basis and, therefore, such tuxes may not be deducted by the Class Fund's brokers an a
“withholding” basis.

Al January 31, the Class Fund has measured its tax linbilities with respect 1o foreign capital gains taxes st nil. However,
there is arisk that foreign tax authorities will begin seeking to collect troes on capital gains earmed by the Class Fund,
without giving any prior warning and possibly, on a retrospective basis. Any retrospective enforcement may result in
a substantial loss 1o the Class Fund.

Distributions: Distributions to the Unitholders are classified as finance ¢osts in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income (Mote 6).

Offsetting financial instruments: Financial assets and lHabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the
Statement of Financial Pesition whene the Class Fund currently has a legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised
amaunts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and setile the lability simultaneowsly,

Forward eurrency and spot foreign exchange contraets: Forwvard currency and spot foreign exchange contracts are
carried at fair value. The unrealised gain or Joss on open forward currency contracts s caloulated as the difference
between the contracted rate and the rate to close out the contract. Net realisad gain on forward currency and spot
forcign currency contracts in the Statement of Comprehensive Income includes net gains and losses on contracts that
have been setiled or offset by otber contracts with the same counterparty. Unrealised gain or boss on open forward
currency and spot foreign exchange contracts is calculated as the difference between the contract rate and the applicable
forward rate, based upon rates reporied in published seurces on the day of valuation, applied to the face amount of the
forward contract.

108/206



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

+H ¥IE D FLIND EN ECTION

Z i n i licies (continwed

Translation of foreign currency amounts: Assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the United
States Dollar are translated at the rate of exchange prevailing on the day of valuation. Foreign currency income and
expenditure ilems are converted at the rate of exchange on the date of the transaction, Gains and losses on foreign
currencies are included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period in which they arise. The Class Fund
does not isolate that portion of the results of operations resulting from changes in foreign exchange rates on
investments from fluctnations arising from changes in market prices of securities held. Such Muctuations are incladed
with the net realised and unrealized gain/{loss) on financial assets ot fair valee through prafit or loss,

Functional and presentation currency: lems included in the Class Fund's finaneial statements are measured using
the United States dollar (the “functional currency™), as the Class Fund primarily invests in United States dollar
dencminated investments. In addition, the Class Fund bas adopted the United States dollar as its presentation eumrency.

! The Class Fund issues seven classes of units (Node 7) which are redecmable at the holder's
option and do not ha'-c identical rights. Such Participating Units are classified as finuncial liabilities. The Participating
Units can be put back to the Class Fund by the holder at any business day for cash equal to a proportionate share of
the Class Fund's net assets. The Participating Units are carried at the redemption amount that is payable at the
Statement of Financial Position date if the Unithalder exercised their right to put the unit back 1o the Clazs Funpd,

Redemptions pavable: Redemptions, whether expressed as dollars or Units, are recognized as redemptions payable
when each of the dollar or Unit amounts requested in the redemption notice becomes fized. As a result, redemptions
paid afler the end of the year, but based upon the year-end net asset values, are reflected as redemypiions payable.

Subscriptions receivable: Receivables from Units subscribed represent amounts receivable from Unitholders for
subseriptions that had been processed prior to January 31, 2020, bt for which cash had not been received.

Receivable from investments sold and payable for investments purchased: These amounts represent receivables
fior securities sold and payables for securities purchased that have been contracted for but not yet setfled or delivered

on the statement of financial position date respectively. The receivables from investments sold balance is held for
collection.

These amounts are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised eost. At each reporting
date, the Class Fund shall measure the Joss allowance on amounts receivahle from imvestments sold at an amount equal
to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk has increased significantly since initial recopnition. 18 a1 the
reporting date, the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Class Fund shall measure the
loes allowanee at an amount equal to 12-month expectad credit losses, Significant financial difficulties of the broker,
probakility that the broker will enter bankruptey or financial reorganisation, and default in payments are all considered
indicators that a loss allowance may be required. If the credit risk increases 1o the point that it is considered to be
credit impaired, interest income will be caleulated based on the gross carmying amount adjusted for the loss allowance.,
A significant increase in eredit risk is defined by management as any conlractual payment which is more than 30 days
past due, Amy contractual payment which is meore than 90 days past due is considered credit impaired,

& Financial assets at Fic value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are comprised of corporate bonds (97.2%) (2019: 97 5%).
Convertible bonds (2.5%) (2019: 1.5%) and other assel backed debt securities (0.3%%) (2019: 1%4). The issuers of these
securities operate in a diverse range of industries with 2 significant concentration of LIS issued securities (57.3%) and
Luxembourg issued securities {1 1.0%0)

=11-
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IGH Y1EL [ FLIND LECTION
5 ST OF RUST

NOTES T FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31,2020

3. Financi ot fair value through profit ar ntinued

Investments inclede securities restricted in secordance with Rule 1444 under the Securities Act of 1933, which allows
fior resale of such security among certain qualified institutional buyvers, The total cost and fair value of the Rule 1444
Securities owned at January 31, 2020 is 42,981,376 and 844,018,655 {2019; 542,105,801 and §41,681,920) which
represents 51.48% (2019: 37.93%5) of net assets a Jamary 31, 2020,

Investments range in manarity date from September 30, 2021 1o December 31, 204% (2019: August 1, 2019 do April
30, 2079) and interest rates ranges from 0.50% to 12.00% (2019: 1.38% to 12.00%%) as of January 31, 2020.

4. Sigmificant agreements and transactions

Distributor

On July 5, 2011, the Units Distribution and Repurchase Agresnient was entered between Queensgate Bank and Trust
Company Lid. and Mizuho Securities Co., Lud., under which that party acts as Distributor of wnits in Japan subject to
terms and conditions. The Distributor is entitled to receive out of the assets aitributable to the Japan Publicly Offered
Units a fee of 0.51%6 per annum of the Net Asset Value attributable to such classes of units of the Class Fund,

Trustee

On Juree 29, 2011, CIBC Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited became the Trustee of the Trust. Pursuant to
the Trust Deed, the Trstee hag exchusive suthority and overall responsibility for the Trust's administration and
management, which inclodes the responsibility For distribution and redemption of umits i the Trust. The Trstes has
appointed Mizuho Bank (LSA) (formerly known as Mizuho Trust & Banking Co. (USA)) to provide the day-to-day
administration of the Class Fund,

The Trusiee is entitled to receive a fiee of 0.01% per annum of the Met Asset Value of the Units during the three
calendar months immediately preceding such quarter-end payable in US dollars in arrears within 30 days from the end
of each calendar quarter subject o a quarterly mininum fise of §3 750,

Admingstration

The Trustes on behall of the Trust has entered into an agreement with Mizuho Bank (USA) daved July 5, 2011, under
which that party scts as Administrator to the Class Fund. For providing administration services to the Class Fund, the
Administrator receives an annual administration fee based on the average month end net asset value of the Class Fund
at maximum annual rates of 0.08%, subject to a quarterly minimum of 511,250,

Investinent manager

Aszet Management One Co., Ltd., formerly DIAM Co,, Ltd, (the “Tovestment Manager™ has been appointed as
Investment Manager to the Trust pursuant to the investment management agresment doted July &, 2001, pursuant to
which the Investment Menager is suthorized to supervise and direct the investment and reinvestment of assets in each
account, with full authority and at its diseretion.

The Trvestment Manager is entitled to receivie an annual fee of 0.755% of that part of the net asset value which is
attributable to the Japan Publicly Offered Units and an annual fee of §.47% of that part of the net asset value which is
attributable to the Non-Japan Publicly Offered Units pavable quarterly in arears.

The lnvestment Manager has delegated cerain respensibilities to Janus Capital Management LLC (the “Sub-
Investment Manager™)
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L HIG) 1E i LECTION
ASERIES TRUST OF DMAM CAYMAN TRUST
A ENTS
¥ . ¥ 31, 2020
4, Signilicant ments and transacti ti

Custodian
Mizuho Bank (LISA) (the “‘Custodian™) has been appointed as the Custodian to the Class Fund by the Trastes pursuant
to a custody agreement dated July 8, 201 1. The Custodian is entitled 1o receive out of the asseis of the Class Fund a

fee of 0.0015% per annum of the net asset value, or such other fee a5 may be agreed between the Trustee and the
Custodizn from time to time.

Agent

On July 3, 2011, the Agent Company Agreement was entered mto between Queensgate Bank and Trust Company,
Ltd. and Mizuho Securities Co., Lid, (the “Agent™). The Agent Company Agresment is an agreement pursuant to
which the Agent, having been appointed by the Manager, agrees to submit the prospectuses regarding the units of the
Clags Fund to the Japan Securitics Dealers’ Association (“JTSDA™), publicize the net asset value per unat and submit
the documents such as the financial statements and other documents o the JSDA. The Agent is entitled to receive a
fee of (01.20%% per annum of the Net Asset Value attributable to the Japan Publicly Offered Units of the Class Fund.

Manager
Queensgate Bank and Trust Company Ltd. (the “Manager™) entered info an agreement with the Trustee noted abowve
on 29 June 200 1 and entered into the Supplemental Trust Deed dated 29 June 201 1 with the Trustee.

The Manager prescribes management of the Claes Fund's assets and issue and repurchase of the units of the Class
Fund, The Manager is entitled 10 receive owt of the assets of the Class Fund a fiee of 0.01% per annum of the net asset
vailue subject (o3 quarterly minimum fee of 53,750, The Manaper's fee will be 2corued daily and calculated based on the
met asset value as ot the immediately preceding day of valuation (daily) and payable quarterly in arrears, The Manager fee
has been incheded with the Tnvestrment Manager fee on the Statement of Comprehensive Income and Statement of Financial
Position.

8. Interest from financial assets st foir value throngh profit or loss

Interest from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is comprised of:

Year ended Year ended
January 31, 2020 January 31, 2019
Investment income
Interest coupon 3 5,623,309 £ 7835082
Accretion of disecunt 152,042 128,927
Amortisation of premium R (578,609}
i 283004 @ E___7383.370
& Distributions

Dhstributions shall be made at the discretion of the Trustee. The distnbutions will B2 made out of the sum of the tofal
net investment income (if any), the net realized capital gains (if any) and the increase in net unrealized capital gains
{if any}) eamed by each Class during the period. Further, the Investment Manager may direct the Adminisirator on
behalf of the Trustee to pay distributions ot of the capital of the Class Fund il considered necessary by the Investment
Manager to maintain a reasonable level of distributions for the Class Fund.

-13-
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Gl AL HIGH Y1E CURRENCY SELECTION
SERIE J CAYMAN TRUST
TAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 2024

6. Distributions {continued)
Dring the year, the following disbursements were made:

Year ended Year ended
Janoary 31, 2020  Japuary 31, 2019

Digtribution pakd from HYAUDATD % 11,231,726 5 13210026
Distobution peid from HYTPFYBRL 1,088,500 2362365
Distobution paid fom HYTPYES] 1,158,317 181212
Distobution paid from HYJTPYJFY 414,159 739,994
Distrbution paid from HYUSDBRL 2493042 L906,132
Distrbution paid from HYUSDRES] 1,693,111 1,707,819

§  IR07RSSS S 23,737,648

7. Units in issue
Seven classes of Lnits are available for subscription, designated as follows:

Abbreviation
HYUSDUSD
HYUSDBRL
HYUSDRSI
HY AUDALD
HY IFY 1Y
HYIFYBS]
HYIPYBEL

C LUnit son and characteristics

UISD (USD hedged) (Mon-Distribution) (Japan Publicly Offered Units)

S0 (BRL hedged) (Distribution) (Japan Publicly Offered Units)

USD {Resource Country Currencies Basket hedged) (Distribution) {Japan Publicly Offered Units)
AL (AU hedged) (Distribution) (Japan Publicly Offered Units)

JPY (JPY hedged) (Distribntion)

JPY {Resource Country Curvencies Basket hedged) (Distribution)

JBY (BRL hedged) {Distribution)

The minimum initial subscription amount for each of the USD (BRL hedged) (Distribution) Class Units, USD
{Resource Country Currencies Basket hedged) (Distribution) Class Units and USD {(USD hedged) (Mon-Distribution)
Class Units by an investor is 1 Unit and in #vcremental amounts of | Unit thereafier. The minimum initial subscription
arnount for the ALID (AU hedged) {Distribution) Class Units by an investor i5 | Unit and in incremental amounts of
1 Unir thereafter. The minimum initial subscription amount for each of the TPY (Resource Country Currencies Basket
hedged) (Distribution} Class Units and JPY (JPY hedged) (Distriburion) Class Units and JPY (BRL hedged)
(Distribution) Class Units is ¥ 10,000 and in incremental amounts of ¥1 thereatter.

The Units of the Class Fund are redeernable ai the option of the Unitholders on each dealing day, at a redemption price
equal 1o the net asset value per unit as determined on such dealing day, provided that the redemption notice has been
received by the Trustee not less than | business days prior to the relevant dealing day.
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LOB BOND FUND CURR TiOM

A SERIES TRUST OF DIAM CAYMAN TRUST
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 2020

7. lUnits in issue {conii

Unit transactions during the year ended Jarary 31, 2020 are as follows:

Met Asset
Value
Class Currency  Opening Units  Units Isswed  Units Redeemed Closing Unils  per Unit
HYALUDALD AUTH 1,358,111 $9.728 (138,708) 1,308,631 5245
HYJPYBRL JEY 337,708 12,455 (2%, 800) 320,263 1,837.93
HYIPYBEI PY 256,288 6,486 (43 400) 219,374 281026
HYIPYTPY ey 99,766 3.202 [21,1007% 81,868 T7475.15
HYUSDBRL Lsp 716,170 3.801 {57.052) 662919 1586
HYUSDES] VS 245,000 - {23,558) 221442 27.88
HYUSDUSD UsD 48,628 TR0 (11,207} 18,201 159,67
Unit transactions during the year ended January 31, 2019 are as follows:
Met Assed
Value
Class Currency  Opening Units Units Isswed  Units Redeemed  Closing Units  per Unit
HYAUDAUD AUD 1,611,678 51,943 [305,515) 1,258,111 5908
HYTPYERL Py 376,074 24634 (63,000) 337,708 2.245.35
HYJPYRS] Y 319,236 10,552 (73,500) 256,288 3,325.59
HYIPYIPY IPY 115,194 3,772 {19,200) 09,766 720613
HYUSEDBRL UsD 290,280 5,040 {(179,750) 716,170 20000
HYUSDBS1 Ush 133,390 37,790 (46,150) 245,000 3501
HYLUSDUSD usD 70,251 990 {22,613) 48,628 143.7%

The Class Fund's capital is primarily represented by these Units. In acoordance with the objectives outlined in Neote 1
and the risk management palicies in Note 8, the Class Fund endeavours to invest the subscriptions received from
Unitholders into appropriote investments while maintaining sufficient figuidity to mes redemptions, with such
ligquidity being augmented by short-term borrowings or redemption of invesimenis where necessary. As of January
31, 2020, all units of the Class Fund were held by two unitholders (2019 two unithalders),

8. Financial risk management

Strategy in using financial instrrments:

The Class Fund®s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (inchuding price risk, currency risk and
interest rate risk}, credit risk and liguidity risk. The Class Fund's overall risk menzgement programme focises on the
unpredictebility of fAnancial markets and seeks 10 minimise potential adverse effects on the Class Fond's financial
performance. The Class Fund wses forward curmency contracts to moderate certain risk cxposires,

All securities investments present a risk of boss of capital, The maximom loss of capital on debt securities is limited
to the fair value of those positions. The maximum loss of capital on forward currency contracts is lmmited to the
notional contrect values of those positions,

Z15-
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GLOBAL HIGH D FUND CURREMN F.
A SERI N F
NOT
YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 2020
B.  Fina | risk managem linmed

Price risk:

The Class Fund is exposed to debt seourities and derivative price risk. This arises from investments held by the
Class Fund for which prices in the fitwre ane uncertain. Where non-monetary financial instruments are denominated
in currencies other than the USD, the price initially expressed in foreign currency and then converted into LSD will
also fMuctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The “Currency risk"” paragraph below sets out how this
component of price risk is managed and measured,

Derivatives inchede instruments and contracts the value of which is linked fo ane or more underhying securities,
financial benchmarks or indices. The vahie of a derivative depends largely upon price movements in the underlyving
asset, Many derivatives provide significantly more market exposure than the money paid or deposited when the
transaction is entered into. A relatively small adverse market movement cin resull not only in the loss of the entire
investment, but may also expose the Class Fund to the possibility of o loss exceeding the original amount invested,
There can be no xssurance that derivatives that the Class Fund wish to acquire will be made available at any particular
times on satisfactory terms or at all.

The Class Fund's policy i to manage price risk through diversification and selection of securities and other financial
instrumenits within specified limits set by the goveming documents of the Class Fund. The Class Fund may engage
in over-the-counter foreign currency forward contracts for the account of the Class Fund.

The Investment Manager does not manage the Clags Fund's investment strategy (@ track a benchmark or any other
index. At January 31, 2020, the Class Fund's market risk s affected by three main components: changes in actual
market prices, interest rate and foreign cusrency movements, 1T the market prices of the bond portfolio {excluding
forweard contracts) at January 31, 2020 had increased by 10% with all other variables held constant, this would have
increased net assets atributable to Unitholders by approwimately 58,558,950 (20 19: $10,465,418). Conversely, if the
market prices of the bond portfolio at Janueasy 21, 2020 had decreased by 1094, this would have decreased net assets
anributable to Unithelders by approximately 58,558,950 (2019: $10,465,418).

The sensitivity analysis presented abowve is based upon the portfdio composition (excluding forward contracts) as at
Jamunry 31, 2020, The composition of the Class Fund's investment portfolio is expected to change over time.
Accordinglhy, the sensitivity analvsis prepared as of Jamuary 31, 2020 is not necessarily indicative of the effect an the
Class Fund's net assets i the future,

Currency risk:

The Class Fund will have exposure to fluctustions in currency exchange rates through investment of the Class Fund's
assets in investments dengminated in currencies other than US dollars. The Class Fund intends to enter into currency
hedping transactions which are designed to reduce, but not liminate éxchanpe-rate risk and proteet all or any part of
the assets from the currency depreciation against US dollars. While the Class Fund will aim to hedge the currency
exposure of the wnits to fluctuations between US dollars and the investment currency fully, the exposure will not
always be 100% hedged mainly because the future value of the relevant investments will change,

The markets in which foreign exchange transactions are eifected are highly volatile, highly specialised and highly

technical. Significant changes, including changes in liquidity and prices, can oceur in such markets within very short
periods of time, often within minutes,
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LOBAL HIGH YIELD

B inancial anagement {eontin

Currency risk (continued):
A January 31, 2020, the Class Fund's net assets and liabilities (excluding net assets attributabile 1o Unitholders and
Clazs-specific forward currency contracts) denominated in foreign currencies are as follows:

Jamuary 31, 2020 January 31, 2019
Amounts 0% scositivity* Amonnts 10% sensitivity®
Fritish Pound 3 303 3§ 189,399 18940
Furo 2,335,500 233,900 {20.733) {2073)
5 EH& 5 IE‘E

*At January 31, 2020, had the exchange rate between the non 1S Dollar and the US dollar increased or decreased by
10% with ali other varinbles held constant, the increase or decrease respectively in net assels antributable 1o Unitholders
would amount to approximately as noted above, excluding the impact of Class-specific forward currency contrscts.

All other assets and liabilities are denominated in ULS. Dollar, except for Class-speeific forward currency contracts
considered below.

At January 31, 2020, had the cxhange rate between the below currencies and the DS dollar increased or decrensed by
i(%4 with all other variables held constant, the increase or decrease respectively in et assets (denominated in USDY)
is shown below.

NAY impact of 10%
currency appreciation’
Currency Classes affected*
JPY 17270 JPYJPY, JPYBRL, JFYHS1
ALD 5,069 844 AUDAUD, USDBS]. JPYBS]
ZAR 362459 JPYBSL, USDES]
BREL 1,620,937 USDES1, USDERL, JFYBSL, IPYBRL

At January 31, 2019, had the exchange rate between the below currencies and the US dollar increased or decreased by
10%% with all other variables held constant, the increase or decrease respectively in net assels is shown below.

MNAY impact of 10%
e CHITEncY Anpre cia
Y SE6,202 JFYIFY, JPYERL, IPFYRS1
ALD 6,314,140 ALDAUD, USDBS], JFYBSI1
ZAR 452,771 IPYBEL, USDBES1
BRL 2,347,168 UsDBS], USDERL, JFYRSI, IPYBRL

*These sensitivity figures show the impact on the Class Fund's overall NAY and Net Inconee, However, the impact shown above
far cach currency would only have an effect on the Classes affectad as shawn above and would not have any impact on the ofher
Claszes.

In accordance with the Class Fund®s policy, the Investment Manager monitors the Class Fund's net currency
pasition on a daily basis.

P b S
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1 FUND CURRENCY

8. Fingncial risk management (continued)

Intepest mte sk

The value of fixed incomne assets may change based on interest rate (luctuations. Typically, when interest mtes
increase, the value of fixed income assets tend to depreciate. On the contrary whan interest rate decreases, the value
of fixed income assets tend to appreciate. The degree of the change of the value of the fxed income asset will depend
on a number of factors including the maturity and conditions of issoznce of the fixed income asset,

Except for the Class Fund's financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, substantially all sssets and linbilities
have either fimerest rate repricing dates or maturity dates of less than & menths, The Class Fund's financia] assets at
fair value through profit or loss, categorised by the earlier of contractual re-pricing or maturity dates, i as follows:

Less than 1 Greater than  MNo repricing
year ltoSyears 5to 10 years 10 years or maturity Total
S date
January 31, 2020 - 31,190,706 48,444,896 3,953,898 - § B5S589.500
January 31, 2019 23,116 42,175,033 12462,1T1 D993, 860 - 5 104,654,150

At January 31, should interest rates have lowered by 104 basis points with all other variables remaining constani, the
ingrease in net assats attributable to Uinitholders for the year would amount to approximately S4,371,880 (201%9:
58,438,493}, ansmg substantially from the increase in market vahwes of debt securities, 1f interest rates hod risen by
10 basis points, the decrease in net assets would amount to approximately 54,147,776 (2019 $7,547,786). In
accordance with the Class Fund's palicy, the Investment Manager monitors the Class Fund's overall interest sensitivity
on & daily basis.

Credit risk:
The Class Fund is exposed to credit risk, which is the risk thar ene party 10 a financial instrament will cause a financial
foss for the ather party by failing to discharge an obligation.

The main concemtration 1o which the Clazs Fund is exposed anises from the Class Fund®s mvestments in debs securities,
The Class Fund is also exposed to counterparty credit risk on trading derivative products, cash and cash equivalens,
miargin and other receivable balunces. The Class Fund seeks to mitigate its exposune to credit risk by placing its cash
balances and transacting its securities activity with large financial institutions.

The Class Fund invests in global high yield bonds and other high yield fixed income securifies to pursue income
generation. It is possible that increased credit risk may prevent the investment objective of pursuing a high level of
income gam from being achieved. High yield fixed income securities and Jower-rated fixed income securities are
securities rated below Baa by Moody's, BBB by Fitch or BBE by S&PF. Lower-rated fixed income securities may be
below “investment grade” and face ongoing uncertainties and exposure 1o adverse business, financial or economic
conditions that could lead o the issuer's inability to meet timely interest and principal payments.

The lower ratings of certain securities held by the Class Fund reflect a greater possibility that adverse changes in the

financial condition of the issuer, or in general economic conditions, or both, or an unanticipated rise in interest rates,
may impair the ability of the issuer to make payments of interest and principal. Such securities carry g higher degree
of default sk which may affect the capital value of an investment,

The inability of issuers to make timely payments of interest and principal may affect the value of securitics held by
the Clags Fund, In the absence of @ liquid trading market for cerfain securities, it may not be possible o establish the
fair value of such securities,

- 18-
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SERI AN TRU

M MAN STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 2024

8. Financisl risk management {continued)

Credit risk:

The rating assigned to a secority by Moody's, S&P or Fitch does not reflect an sssessment of the volatility of the

security's market value or the ligoidity of the investment, A security may not necessarily be realised when its rating is

;fuc:d below its rating at the time of purchase. Portfolio by raring category for each class of debt securitics is as
loras:

January 31,2020 January 31, 2019
Yo of Yo of
—Fair Valge Fortfodin Fair Yalue Fortfolio

Corporate Honds
BEB- 4,055,407 4.75% 3,756,532 3.55%
ni+ 6,600,176 771% 17,445,745 16.67%
biii3 11,483,083 13.42% 15,545,005 14.85%
BE- 12,823,171 14.98% 11,433,570 10.953%
B+ 72165659 2.13% 9,603,158 S.18%
B 17,560,165 M98 17,761,004 16.97%
B- 10,237,778 13.153% 14,751075 14.10%
CoC+ 6537830 T64% 6,480,624 6.19%
Cre 1304,158 1.52% 2,225,330 202%%
CCC- 403,284 0474 - 001
MR 2.962,197 3.46% 3,019,739 2E9%
Total Corparate Bonds 3,156,219 7. 19% 2 030,472 97,49%
Comeriible Bonds
BB+ i35 5T 223 A} D.21%s
oot 158,722 0.43% . 0008
NE. LOT3.037 1.25% 1,204,086 L.3%
Tiodad Comvertibde Bonds 217918 2.55% L31T.496 1.45%%
Assl-Backed 5ecurities
BB L2100 0.26% 1165712 1.06%
Totd Assol-Backed Secarities 21 160 0.26% 1105712 1.06%%

5 B5SE0.500  109.00% 5 104 654150 100004

Cash and cash equivalents which potentially expose the Class Fund to credit risk consist primarily of call balunces
and placernents with an original maturity of 3 months or less from placement. The cash equivalents are placed with
Mizuho Trust & Banking Cayman Islands by the Custodian (which has an S&P credit rating of A= (2019: A-)) and
thus are not considered to pose a significant credit risk. Margin iz held with JP Morgan (which has an S&P credit
rating of A-) through a sub-custody arrangement &nd is also not considerad 1o pose a significant credit risk.

All transactions are sefled/paid for upon delivery using approved brokers. The risk of default is considered minimal,

as delivery of securities sold is only made once the broker has received payment. Payment is made on a purchase onee
the securities have been réceived by the broker, The trade will fail if either party fails to meet s obligation.
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inantial risk manarement (conting

Credit risk (contined):

The counterpanties to the Class Fund's non-exchange traded derivative contracts are major financial instingtions.
Mamagement does not consider that credit risk related to apen denvative contracts will have a material adverse effect
on the financial condition of the Class Fund,

The Class Fund measures credit risk and expected credit losses using probability of default, exposure at default and
loss given defiult, Management consider both hastorical analysis and foroard looking information in determ ining any
expected eredit loss, Management consider the probability of default to be close to zero as the counterparties have a
atfofg capacity to méet therr contractual obligations in the near term. As a result, no loss allowance has been
recognised based on 1 2-month expected credit losses as any such impaiment would be wholly insignificant to the
Clazs Fund.

In aceordante with the Class Fund's policy, the Sub-Investment Manager monitors the Class Fund's credit position
oni a daily basis.

Liguidity risk:
Liquidity risk 15 the rizk that the Class Fund may not be able to generate sufficient cash resources 1o serle its
obligations in full as they fall due or can only do 5o on terms that are materially disadvantageous,

The Class Fund may periodically invest in derivative contracts and debt securities that are traded over the counter. As
a result, the Class Fund may not be able to Lguidate quickly its imvestments in these instruments ai an amount close
to their fair value to mest its liquidity requirements, or be able to respond to specific events such s deterioration in
the creditworthiness of any particular issuer,

As at January 31, 2020 and 2019, all the unrealised gains and losses on forward currency contracts mature within 90
days or less.

Participating Units are redeemed on demand at the Unitholder’s option. However, the Trustee docs not foresee that
this contractual maturity disclosed will be representative of the actual cash outflows, as holders of these instruments
typically retain them for the medium to long term.

As at January 31, 2020 and 20019, all other liabilities of the Class Fund had a contractual maturity of less than one
month. The Investment Manager monitors the Class Fund's liquidity position on an ongoing basis.

Custody rigk:

The Class Fund may invest directly or indirectly, in markets where custodial andfor settlement systems. are not fully
developed. The assets of the Class Fund which are traded in such markets and which have been entrusted to sub-
custodians, in circumstances where the use of such sub-custodians is necessary, may be exposed to cenain risks. Such
risks include, but are not limited to, @ non-true delivery versus payment settlement, a physical market, and as a
consequence the cireulation of forged securities, poor information in regards to corporate scfions, registration process
that impacts the awailability of the securities, lack of appropriate Jegalfiscal infrustructure and lack of
compensation/risk fund with a central depository.

The Class. Fund maintains a custody aceoumt with its prime broker and primary custodian, Mizuho Bark (USA),
(“Minsho™). Although the Trustee monitors Mizuho, and believes that they are appropriate custodians, there is no
guarantes that Mizuho, or any other custodian that the Class Furd may use from time to time, will not bacome
insolvent. While both the US, Bankruptey Code and the Securities Investor Protection Act of 1970 seek to protect
customer property in the eveat of a faikre, insolvency or liquidatien of a broker-dealer, there is no centainty that, in
the event of a failure of a broker-dealer that has custody of Class Fund assets, the Class Fund would not incur losses
due to its assets being unavailable for a period of time, ultimately less than full recovery of its assets, or both. Because
substantially all of the Class Fund's assets are custodied with enz custodian, such losses could be significant and could
materially impair the ability of the Class Fund to achieve its investment objective,

=20 -
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HIGH ¥1 ND FLND CL NCY

A SERIES TRUST OF DIAM CAVMAN TRUST
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31,2030

8, Financial risk mznagement {contimued)

Eair Value PYisclosures:

In accordance with IFR3 13, the Class Fund is required to classify fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy
that reflects the significance of the inputs usad in making the measurernemts. The fair value hierarchy has the following
lewels:

= Quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1),

= Inputs other than quoted prices included within level | that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2y

*  Imputs for the asset or liabdlity that ant not based on observable market data (that is, unohservable inputs) (level
3

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement iz categorized in itz entirety is
determined on the basis of the lowest level inpat that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety, For
this purpose, the significance of an input is assessed against the: fair value measurement in its entiregy, If & fair value
measurement wses observable inputs that require significant adjustment based on unobservahle inputs, that
measurement is a level 3 measurement. Assessing the significance of a particular input to the fair valug
measurement in its entirety requires jodgment, considering factors specific to the asset or liahility.

The determination of what constiiates ‘observable’ requires significant judgment by the Class Fund, The Class Fund
considers abservable data to be that market data that is readily available, regularly distributed or opdated, reliable and
werifiable, not prapristary, and provided by independent sources that are actively involved in tha relevanm market.

As at January 31, 2020 and 2019, all the financial assets and financial lizbilities held at fair value through profit and
toss and forward curmency contracts, were classified as level 2,

Investments whose values are based on quoted market prices in active markets, and therefore classified within level
1, may include US government treasury bills and certain nen-US soversign obligations. The Class Fund does not
adjust the quoted price for these instruments,

Financial instrements that trade in markets that are not considered to be active but are valued based on quoted market
prices, dealer quotations of alternative peicing sources supported by observable inputs are classified within level 2,
These include most corporate and convertible bonds, cermain non-US sovercign obligations, morigage backed
securities and some over-the-counter derivatives. As level 2 investments include positions that are not traded in active
markets andfor are subject to transfer restrictions, valuations may be adjusted to reflect illiquidity andfor non-
transferabality, which are generally based on available market information.

Investments classified within level 3 have significant unobservable inputs, as they trade infrequently or not at all. As
ohservable prices are not available for these securities, the Class Fund has used valuarion techniques to derive the fair
value, At January 31, 2020 and 2019 the Class Fund held no level 3 investrents,

.|.|'l LS wiEfer pelting grramg J nd similar aer i

The Class Fund is required to disclose the impact of effsetting assets and liabilities represented in the Statanment of
Financial Position to enable users of the financial statements (o evaluate the effect or potential effect of netting
arrangements on its financial position for recognized assets and lisbilitics. These assets and liabilities inclede cortain
finzncial instruments and derivative inswruments that are either subject 1o an enforceable master netting arrangement,
or similar agreement, As at January 31, 2020 and 2019 the Class Fund had derivative assats and liabilities that are
subject to three master netling arrangerments with its derivative counterparties.

=21 -
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GLOBAL HIGH YIELD BOND FUND CURRENCY SELECTION
A SERIES TRUST OF DIAM CAYMAN TRUST

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 2020

E m . I I 3 " N T

The Class Fund and its -::rumerrpames h:we elr.-:[ed [0} mte &1] mmmns ona grnss basis however, each
party kas the eption to settle all epen contracts on a net basis in the event of default of the other party, Per the
terms of the master nelting agreement, an event of defanlt inchides the following:

#  failure by a party to make payment when due;

*  failure by a party to pecfonm any obligation required by the agreement (other than payment) if such failure
i5 not remedied within 30 days after potice of such failure iz given to the party;

- hanh'upl.tj'.

The Fund has elected not to offset fair value amounts recognized for cash collateral receivables and payables
against fair value amounts recognized for derivative positions executed with the sane counterparty under the
same master Heiing arrangement.

The following tables present the Class Fund's financial assets and liabilities subject to offsetting, enforceahle
master nefting arrangements and similar agreements. The tables are presented hy type of financial instrument.

Financizl assets subject to offseiting, enforceable master neting arrangements and similar ngreements:

A B C=AB
Gross amounts of  Gross amounts of  Met amounts of
recognised recognised financial assets
Tmancial assets financial presented in the

liabilities set-off staternent of
in the statement  financial position

of financial
position
Description
2020
Forward currency contracts 165,122 - 165,122
165,122
2019
Forward currency contracts 1,633,151 - 1,633,151
1,633,151
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D BOND FUND CURRENCY SELE
18 1 : A

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 2020

8. Finsncisl rish management {continwed}

C=AB (b E=C-D
et amounts of RBelated amounts not set=off in the Met amgunt
financial zasets satement of financial position
presented in the i} and D¥iR) INii) Collateral
staterment of Finaneial received
financial position Instrments
Counterparty
o2
Counterparty | 62 667 62667 - -
Counterparty 2 5438 5438 - -
Counterparty 3 14,276 6,000 . 8186
Counterparty 5 16,325 16,325 . E
Counterparty 65,336 3014 - 62,322
Coumerparty 7 BO6 - - 896
Counterparty 8 184 - 154
165,122 93,534 - 71,588
2010
Counterparty | 539935 12324 - 517,611
Counterparty 3 7,804 7239 - 565
Counterparty 4 255,725 28,208 - 227,017
Coupterparty 5 3,505 3,505 = -
Counterparty & 3,818 31816 - -
Counterparty 7 793,567 4,200 - 789358
Counterparty § 692 388 - 304
Counterparry 10 G07 - - - 607
1,633,151 ) 07,689 - z 1,535,462
A B C=A-B
Gross amounts of  Cross amounts of  Net amounts of
recognised recognised financial
financial financial assets liakilities
liakilities set-off in the presented in the
statement of statement of
financial position  financial position
Deseription
2020
Forward cumency contracts 2,736,547 . 2,736,547
21,736,547
201%
Forward cuerency contracts 495, T - 495,706
405,706

S2Fs
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GLO Hi E M J ENCY SELECTION
A SERIES TRUST OF DIAM CAYMAN TRUST

ENTS
YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 2020

8. Financial risk management {continued)

Financial liabilities suhjum: o uflkumug, :nfom:ah]u master rwnmg arnngemems a.ndsamﬂw BETCCMENS:

C=AB 2] E~C-D
Met amounts of Related amounts not set-off in the Net amount
financial statement of fmancial position
lisbilities I3y and D) Dii) Collateral
presented in the Financial pledped
statement of Instnuments
financial position
Counterpariy
2020
Counterparty | 1,137,419 62,667 90,000 184,752
Counterparty 2 55,692 5438 - 50,254
Counterparty 3 6,090 6,050 5 E
Counterparty 4 1,394,808 . - 1,394,808
Counterparty 5 71,541 16,325 . 55218
Counterparty 6 30014 3014 . -
Counterparty 9 a7 . - 97
Counterparty 10 67 486 - = 67,886
2,736,547 93,534 890,000 1,753,013
M9
Counterparty 1 21,324 N & -
Counterparty 2 BR 490 - = BB499
Countérparty 3 7,239 1,230 - -
Counterparty 4 25208 28,208 . -
Counterparty 5 104,908 3,505 - 101,403
Counterparly & 66,023 311,816 - 34,207
Counterparty 7 4,204 4,204 N i
Counterparty § 1 388 - -
Counterparty & 173,908 . . 173,908
495706 97,680 4 308,017

Amounts in DN} and Diii) above relate to amounts subject to set-0ff that do not qualify for offsetting under (B) above.
This mehedes (i) amounts which are subject to set-off ugainst the asset (or liability) disclosed in *A” which have oot
been offset m the statement of financial position, and (i) any financial collateral (including cash collateral), both
received and pledged.

Assets and liabilities nat

Investments are carried o fair value. The carrying values of all other fingncial assets and liabilities are carried at
amortised cost; their carrying values are a reasonable approximation of fair value,

€ash and eash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held with banks and other shor-tertn investments in an active
market. Cash and cash equivalents have been determined using level | inputs, Margin includes restricted cash balances
held as margin or collateral for foreign currency forwards rrading, Margin has been determined using level 1 inputs,

-2 .
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LCLOBAL HIGH YIELD ROND FUND CURRENCY SELECTION

A SERTES TRUST OF DIAM CAYMAN TRUST

CIAL STATEMENTS
31, 2020

Receivable from investments sold ard other receivables include the contractual amounts for settlement of trades and
other obligations due fo the Class Fund. Payable for investments purchased and acemals represent the contractual
amounts and ohligations due by the Class Fund for setlement of rrades and expenses. These receivables and payables
have been determined using fevel 2 inputs.

The puttable valse of Participating Units is calculated based on the net difference between total assets and all other
Iinkilities of the Class Fund in accordance with the Class Fund's governing documents. These Participating Units are
not traded on an active market. A demand feature is attached to thes units, as they are redeemable at the Unitholders®
option and can be put back to the Clags Fund at any dealing date for cash equal to a proportionate share of the Class
Fund's net asset value attributable to the Unit Class (Motes 2 and 7). The fair value is based on the amount payahle on
demand, discounted from de first date that the ameunt coild be required 1o be paid. The mmpact of discounting in this
instance i3 not miterial. As such, Level 2 is deemed to be the most appropriate categorisation for nel assets atiributable
to Unitholdess,

10, Commitments

In the normal course of business, the trustes andor Manager (“Management™) on behalf of the Trust enters into
confracts that contiin a variety of representations and warmantics and which provide general indemnifications,
Management's maximun exposure under these armangements is unknown, as this would involve future claims that may
b made against Managernent that have not vet occirred, however, based on experience, Management expects the risk
of loss to be remote.

11, Corresponding amounts

All corresponding amounts relite to the period ended January 31, 2009, Certain cormesponding figures have been
reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.

12. Sun uent events

From February 1, 2020 through June 12, 2020, there were subscriptions and redemptions of $403, 078 and £3,166.931,
respectively. Additionally. Distributions of $5.463,705 have been made during this peried.

Beginning in January 2020, global financial markets have experienced and may continue to experience significant
volatility resulting from the spread of a novel coronavirnus known as COVID-19. The ouibreak of COVID-19 has
resulied in tfravel and border restrictions, quarantines, supply chain disruptions, lower consumer demand and general
market uncertainty. The extent and duration of the impact of COVID-19 on global and local economies, fimancial
markets, and sectors and specific positions in which the Class Fund invests is uncertain at this point and has the potential
to continue to adversely affect the value of the Class Fund's portfolio and performance.

Subsequent events were evaluated up until Tune 12, 2020, which was the date that the financial statements were
available to be issued,

L
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2020

66,012,059 7,098,276,704
1,782,597 191,682,655
5,018,517 539,641,133
6,706,651 721,166,182
4,298,358 462,202,436
53,901,019 3,845,837,706

35,013

649,551

214,840

1,250,297
143.33 15,412
10.33 1,111
20.01 2,152
43.12 3,077
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2019 2018 12 31

2019 2018
10,242,079 1,101,331 10,786,950 1,159,921
2,000,000 215,060
1,052,219 113,145 1,112,287 119,604
491,849 52,889 464,112 49,906
6,438 692 11,511 1,238
75,232 8,090 97,192 10,451
11,867,817 1,276,146 14,472,052 1,556,180
177,513 19,088 214,777 23,095
12,045,330 1,295,234 14,686,829 1,579,275
6,926,053 744,758 9,496,458 1,021,154
478,758 51,481 488,573 52,536
233,763 25,137 222,460 23,921
7,638,574 821,376 10,207,491 1,097,612
2,000,000 215,060 2,000,000 215,060
2,406,756 258,798 2,479,338 266,603
4,406,756 473,858 4,479,338 481,663
12,045,330 1,295,234 14,686,829 1,579,275
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2019 2018 12 31
2019 2018
101,532 10,918 60,908 6,549
10,955 1,178 8,315 894
90,577 9,740 52,593 5,655
4,586,452 493,181 4,599,595 494,594
206,511 22,206 227,870 24,503
38,400 4,129 38,400 4,129
4,831,363 519,516 4,865,865 523,226
4,921,940 529,256 4,918,458 528,882
10 2,801,848 301,283 2,848,636 306,314
1,031,475 110,915 1,011,255 108,740
361,491 38,871 361,491 38,871
48,390 5,203 139,116 14,959
8,459 910
1,145 123 7 1
173 19 393 42
4,244,522 456,413 4,369,357 469,837
677,418 72,843 549,101 59,045
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2019 2018 12 31
2,000,000 215,060 2,680,237 288,206 4,680,237 503,266
549,101 59,045 549,101 59,045
(750,000) (80,648) (750,000) (80,648)
2,000,000 215,060 2,479,338 266,603 4,479,338 481,663
677,418 72,843 677,418 72,843
(750,000) (80,648) (750,000) (80, 648)
2,000,000 215,060 2,406,756 258,798 4,406,756 473,858
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2019 2018 12 31

2019 2018
677,418 72,843 549,101 59,045
48,390 5,203 139,116 14,959
173 19 393 42
725,981 78,065 688,610 74,046
60,068 6,459 (1,092,011) (117,424)
2,000,000 215,060 (2,000,000) (215,060)
(27,737) (2,983) 4,143 445
5,073 545 27,043 2,908
21,960 2,361 3,085 332
(2,570,405) (276,396) 2,503,156 269,164
(9,815) (1,055) 62,334 6,703
11,303 1,215 213,459 22,953
216,428 23,273 409,819 44,068
(11,299) (1,215) (35,957) (3,866)
(750,000) (80,648) (750,000) (80,648)
(544,871) (58,590) (376,138) (40,446)
10,786,950 1,159,921 11,163,088 1,200,367
10,242,079 1,101,331 10,786,950 1,159,921
12,988 1,397 5,972 642
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2019 2018 12 31

1990 15

2009 2014
2014

2031
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2019 10
15
2019
60,052

15 2018 10

2018

2019 2018 12 31
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2019 2018 12 31

16 ( 16 ) 17
2019
12
2019 12 31
16 2019 12 31 2019 12 31

2017 23
2019
23 12
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2019 2018
4,625,137 4,628,459
5,616,942 6,158,491
10,242,079 10,786,950
2019 2018 12 31
2019 2018
321,228 318,352
170,621 145,760
491,849 464,112
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2019 2018
15,005

127,120 110,409
60,826 49,462
202,951 159,871

2019 2018
(1,145) @)
1,145 7

2019 2018
4,322,382 6,107,009
2,603,671 3,389,449
6,926,053 9,496,458
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972,247 372,854 1,345,101
35,957 35,957
(183,572) (183,572)

824,632 372,854 1,197,486

11,299 11,299
(94,051) (94,051)

741,880 372,854 1,114,734

829,577 197,195 1,026,772

78,472 60,644 139,116
(183,179) (183,179)

724,870 257,839 982,709

26,506 21,884 48,390
(93,878) (93,878)

657,498 279,723 937,221

99,762 115,015 214,777

84,382 93,131 177,513

173 173
393 393
2019 2018
10,000,000

2,000,000 2018 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000
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Tilly Nominees Limited Coultry Directors Ltd
Tilly Nominees Limited Tilly Directors Limited Tilly
Secretaries Limited Nominee
(Trust) Companies

2019 2018
Tilly Nominees Limited 100 100
Coultry Directors Ltd 100 100
Tilly Directors Limited 100 100
Tilly Secretaries Limited 100 100
2019 12 31 975,610 2018 975,610
2019 2018
12 31
1,044,298 1,108,852
2,260 1,928
1,813,355 1,436,707
5,681 164
12 31
238,600 238,600
25,000 25,000
361,491 361,491
2011 31

10
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2019 12 31
159,712

43 2018 33
2019 2018
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2019 2018 12 31
2019

-0.85  0.55 4,625,137 5,616,942 10,242,079

5.26 1,052,219 1,052,219

491,849 491,849

6,438 6,438

6,175,643 5,616,942 11,792,585

-0.80  0.20 4,322,382 2,603,671 6,926,053

478,758 478,758

4,801,140 2,603,671 7,404,811

1,374,503 3,013,271 4,387,774
2018

-0.75  0.61 4,628,459 6,158,491 10,786,950

1.05 2,000,000 2,000,000

4.45  5.26 1,112,287 1,112,287

464,112 464,112

11,511 11,511

6,216,369 8,158,491 14,374,860

-0.80  0.65 6,107,009 3,389,449 9,496,458

488,573 488,573
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6,595,582 3,389,449 9,985,031
(379,213) 4,769,042 4,389,829
2019 12 31 30 2018 30
4,065 2018 1,099
2019 12 31 30 2018 30
9,040
2018 14,307
2019 2018 12 31 30
2019 2018 12 31
2019 2018 12 31
2019
8,156 (2,768) 5,388
55,901 (2,546) 53,355
64,057 (5.314) 58,743
2018
50,400 (45,091) 5,309
1,284,772 (1,234,116) 50,656
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12,236 (12) 12,224
5,154 (4,364) 790
1,445 (312) 1,133
1,354,007 (1,283,895) 70,112
10 2019 12 31
2018 7,011

2018 12 31

400,000
2018 12 31

19
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

December 31, 2019 and 2018

{exprazsed i United Siatas dolars)

2018 2018
ASSETS
CURREMT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents {Ncte 3} $ 10,242,079 § 10,788,850
Due from bank on time deposit - 2,000,000
Due fram cliegnts (Note 9) 1,052,219 1,112 287
Client accounts receivable (Mote 4) 431,843 464112
Other receivables 6,438 11,511
Frepaid axpanses 75,232 §7.182
11,867 817 14,472 052
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Fixed asssts (Mote 8) 177,513 214 777
§ 12045330 5 14,686,828
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Depositors’ accounts {Notes 5 and 5) § 6,926,053 3 9406458
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (Mote 9) 478,758 488 873
Fees received in advance 233,763 233 480
7,638,574 10,207.491
SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY
Share capitzl (Note 7) 2,000,000 2,000,000
Retained eamings 2,406,736 2478338
4,408,758 4470338
§ 12045330 3 14686829

See notes lo consalidated financial statements
Page 3
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018
{expressed in United States doflars)

2019 2018
INTEREST INCOME 3 101,532 5 60,208
INTEREST EXPENSE 10,955 8.315
MET INTEREST INCOME 20,577 52,503
OTHER INCOME
Directorship, trustee and management fess (Mote 9) 4 586,452 4,500 585
Miscellaneaus 206,511 227,870
Rental income 38,400 38,400
4,831,383 4 BES,BES
TOTAL INCOME 4,921,940 4518 458
OFERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and benafits (Mote 10) 2,801,848 2,848 838
Adminlstration (Mote 9) 1,031,478 1,011,258
Rent expense (Note 9) 381,491 381,481
Depreciaticn (Mote ) 48,380 133,116
Foreign exchange lossi{gain) - 8,458
Expected credit ioss (Note 4} 1,145 7
Loss on disposal of fixed asset (Mote 6) 173 3g3
4,244,522 4,368 357
MET INCOME AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME $ 677,418 $ 548 101

Sew notas o consolidated financial stalements
Page 4
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholder’s Equity
for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018
{axprassed in Uniled Stalas dolars)

Total

Retalned sharaholder's

Share capital earnings equity

Balance at December 31, 2017 § 000000 ¥ 2680237 3§ 4 880,237
Net income and comprehensive incame - 548 1041 545 104

Dividends (Mate 7) - {750,000} (750,000)
Balance at December 31, 2018 2,000,000 2479338 4,479 338
Met income and comprehensive income - GiT.418 G677 418

Dividends {Mole 7) - (750, 000Y (T50,000)
Balance at December 31, 2013 § 2000000 § 2406756 § 4406755

See nofes fo consaligeted financial statemants
Page 5
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018
{expressad in United States doliars)

CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN):

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Met income and comprehensive income
Adjustments for items not affecting cash:
Depreciation
Loss on dispozal of fixed asset

Changes in operafing assets and liabil'ties:
Due from clients
Due from bank on ime deposit
Client accounts receivable
Other receivables
Prepaid expensas
Depositors' accounts
Aceounts payable and scorued expenses
Fees recelved in advance

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of fixed assets

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cividends paid

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR

SUFPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW
INFORMATION

Cash paid during the year for interest

2013 2018

5 87T 418 5 548,104
48,290 138,116

173 393

725,881 688,610
60,068 (1,082,011}
2,000,000 {2,000,000)
(27,737) 4,143

5,073 27,043

21,960 3,085
(2,570,406) 2,503,156
(9,815) 62,334

11,203 213,459

216,428 409,810
{11,299) {35.957)
{750,000) (750.000)
{544,871) {276,128)
10,786,950 11,163,088

§ 10242079 $  10,785.250
$ 12,988 5 5572

See notes lo consolidated financial stalemens
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018

{expressed in Uniled Slates dollars)

1. THE COMPANY AND ITS PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

Queensgate Bank and Trust Company Ltd (the “Company”) was incersorated under the laws of the
Cayman lslands on June 15, 1990 as Queensgate Bank & Trust Company Ltd ("QBTC") and i5 a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Queensgate Group Lid. {the "Parent”), a company alsa incorporated in the
Cayman Islands

On January 2, 2008, QBTC underiock a restructuring in order to separate the banking activities from
the trust activiies. Subsequently, on January 1, 2014, the Company undartoas a merger to re-comhbing
the bank and the trust activities. On January 2, 2014, the Company changed its name to Queensgate
Bank and Trust Company Ltd. The newly named company continued as the entity formerly named
Gueansgate Trust Company Lid. and is icensed with a Class B Banking license, 3 Trust Company
licanse and Mutual Fund Administration icense with the Cayman 1slands Manatary Authority (“CIMA™,

The Company has received an undartaking from the Cayman Islands Government exempting # from all

kocal income, profits and capital gains taxes until Feoruary 1, 2031, No such taxes exist in the Cayman
Islands at the present time.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consclidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Imternational Financial
Reporting Standards ("IFRE") and reflect the following policies:

Basis of consolidation

The conselidated financial staternents incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Conirol is achieved when the Company.

= has powar over the investes;
= s exposed, or has rights, to vasiable retums fram its invalvement with the investes: and
+  has the ability to use ita power to affect itz returns.

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an invesiee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes o one or more of the thiee elaments of control listed above,

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obfaing confrol aver the subsidiary and ceases
when the Company loses control of the subsidary, Specificaily, income and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired of disposed af during the year are included in the consolidated statements of comprehensive
income from the date the Company gains control until the date when the Company ceases to confrol
the subsidiary

All significant intercompany transaclions and balances have been eliminated on consoiidation, Refer 1o
Mote 8 for other disclosures relating to the subsidiaries.

Page 7
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018
fexpressed in Unided Sfates dollars) {continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuec)

Use of estimates

Financizal statements prepared in accordance with IFRS reguire management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amourts of assets and liabilities and disciosure of contingent assets
and liabiltias at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expenss
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and short-termn deposils with an original maturity of three
months ar less.

Due from bank on tima deposit
Due fram banx on time deposit includes a deposit with an original maturity of greater than three months
Due from cliants

Due from clients are temporary overdrafts given 1o clien's and the carrying value approximates fair
value as such amourts bear interest at vardable rates. Due from clienis are recorded net of a provision
for expected credit losses. The expected eredit logses provision s estimated by managemant when
losses are expected.

Client accournts receivable and alfowance for doubtful accounts

Client accounis receivable includes fee income receivaoles generated from the Company's
diractorship, trustee and managerment fees and receivables for disbursements made on behall of
chents. Fee income receivables are stated net of a provision for expacted credit losses. Receivables
for disbursemants made on behalf of clients do not have a related provision for expected credit losses
as these balances lypically represent unbiled disbursements that the Company expects to recaver
once biled,

The provision for axpected credit losses is eslablished by sharges fo income based on the expected
credit losses in reseivable balances, These are based upen management’s knowledgs of the current
condition af the Company’s clients. When losses are expected, recevables are written off against the
related provision for expected credit losses; subsequent recoveres are credited to the provision in the
consalidated statements of comprehensive income,

Page &8
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018

fexprassed in Uniled States dofars) {continued)

Z. SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fixed assats

A new fined assat policy was implemented on January 1, 2019, amending the estimated useful Ives of
furniture and computer equipment from 3 to 10 years to 3 to 15 years, and motor vehicles from 5 years
Io 8 yaars, This policy was updated as a result of a current year review of the fixed assets in operation,
for which it was concluded that the actual usefui life exceeded the former policy. The effect of this for
2019 was to reduce the depreciation expense by 360,052,

Fied assels are stalad al cosl less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is calculated using the
straight-line mathod and 5 based oo the estimated ives as folows:

Furniture and computer equipment 3 to 15 years {2018: 3 to 10 years)
Mator vehicles & years (2018, 5 years)

At the end of each reparting pericd, the Company reviews the carrying amount of its fixed assels to
determing whether there i any indication that those assets have suffered an impairmant loss. [f any
such indication exists, the recoverable amauni of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss {if any). For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Company has
not identified any assets for which an Impairment loss was recorded.

Interest income and expeanse

Interest income and expense are recognised in the consclidated statements of comprehensive income
for all interest beanng instruments or an accrual basis using the efective vield method.

Revenue recognition
The Company recogrisaes revenue from fhe following sources:

+  directorship, trustee, management gnd ather similar services provided to clients,

»  miscellaneous services provided to clients and disbursement charges for services provided to
client in connection with the directorship, trustee and management services being provided;
and

+ rental income for use of its office space.

Reovenue is measured based on the congsideration that the Company is confracted to receiva from its
clients and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The Company recogrises revenues
an an acerual basis as perfarmance obligations are satisfied

The primary source of revenue for the Company iz from the provision of directorship, frustes,
management, and registered office services (o 8 clenls. For thess services, the Company recognises
revenues aver the contracted period of service which coincides with a calendar vear. Where mudliple

services are provided fo & single client the revenues generated from each type of service are
recognised saparately.

Page 9

149/206



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2018

{expressed in United States doflars) {continued)

Z. SIGMIFICANT ACCOUNTIMG POLICIES (continuod)

Revenue recognition [continued)

Miscellaneaus income includes disbursement fees charged to clignts for the Company's overhead and
fees charged 1o clients for miscellaneous services such as copy services for mestings or courier costs
Disbursemant fee ravanue is charged basad on a percentage of the contracted revenue for directorshig,
trustea, managemeant and other simi'ar services and is recognised in the same patiem as the revenues
for those senvices, Fees charged to clents for miscellaneous services are recognisad in revenue at the
paint in time in which they are provided.

The Company records rental income from leasing out their office space to thind parties. The rental
income is samed and recognised on a maonth to month basis and is not based on a contract

Foreign currency transiation

The Company's presantation curency is the Uinited States dollar. Assels and fliahilities denominated or
accounted for in currancies cther than United States dollars have been trenslated into Unitec States
daliars at the apolicable exchange rates ruling at the ststement of financial position date. Foreign currency
fransactions and incorme and axpensa items have been translated at the exchange rates existing at the
tirme of the transaction. Gains and losses arising from translation are included in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income

Assets under administration

Securities, cash and other assets held on behalf of dients in a rust, agency or fiduciary capachy are not
inchuded in these consalidated financial statements as such assets are nol the property of e Company,

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Company’s slatement of financial position
when the Company becomes a party 1o the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets
and financial liabiliies are infially measurad at fair value and subsequent!y measured at amaortised cost
or subsequently measurad at fair va'ue depending on their cash flow characteristics. Due to the short
term nature of the financial assets and liabilities held by the Company, carrying value approximalés fair
value.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
of it transfers the financial assct and substantially all of the fsks and rewards of ownership of the asset
to anather entity. Financial liabilities are derecognised when the Company's cbligations are
discharged, cancelled, or they axpie.

Fidueiary activities

The Company, i1 its fiduciary capacity, may be a party to liigation and claims in the nommal course of

business. In the opinion of the Directors, which is based on the advice from the Company's lawyers,
no previsions are requared at December 31, 2019 and 2018

Page 10
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018
fexpressed in United Slates dollars) {centinued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

New and amended IFRS standards that are effective for the current year

IFRS 16 Leases ("IFRS 167) replaces |AS 17 Leases and is effective for annual periods beginning an
or after January 1, 2019, The standard provides a comprehansive model for the identification of lease
arrangements and a single lease accounting model which requires lessees to recogniee assats and
iiabikties for all legse arrangements uniess the t2rm is 12 months or less or the underlying asset has a
low value. The Company has adopted IFRS 16 for the year ended December 31, 2018, Due to the
short-term  nature of the one |ease conbract existing as at and during the year ended
December 31, 2018, thera has bean no significant impact upon adoption,

In June 2017, the IFRS Intarpretations Committes issved IFRIC 23, Uncertainly owver Income Tax
Treatments, which is effective for annual periods baginning on or after January 1, 2018, with early
application parmitted and fransitional rules apply, IFRIC 23 clarifies how lo apply the recognition and
measurament requirements in 1A 12 focome Taxes when there is uncedainty over income tax
treatments. The adoption of this guidarce had no significant impact on the financial statements,

New and revised IFRS standards in issue but not yet effective

The Campany has reviewed the IFRS standards that have been issuad but are not yet effective and
has concluded that they will ot have a materal impact on the financial statements in future pariods.

Critical accounting fudgemeant and key source of estimation uncertainty

The Company makes estimatas and assumptions that affect the reporied amounts of assels and liabilities.
Estimates are continually evaluated and based on historical experience and other factors including
expectations of future events that are believed (o be reasonable under the circumstances, The key areas
of judgemeant or estimation are with regard 1o the expected useful econamic lives of fived assels as wall
as the recoverability of client accounts receivable fram clients and due from clients. The expected useful
economic lives of fixed assels are based on pror expenence of similar assels. Client accounts receivable
and dug from clients are considered to be recoverable in full by the Company after taking info
consideration the age of the recavable, the financial stability of the delbtors and the post year end receipts
ta the date of the report.

3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2018 2018

Call deposits 5 4,525 137 3 4,628,459
Short-term fixed deposits 5,616,542 6,158,481
5 10.242.07% % 10,788 950

Short-tenm fixed depasits as st December 31, 2018 and 2018 mature within three manths from the onginal
issued date.

Page 11
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018

faxpressed fn United Siates dolars) (continued)

4. CLIENT ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Amounts receivable in respect of fag incame eamed by the Company or disburseaments made on bahalf
of clients are comprised as follows:

2019 2018

Fee income receivables 5 321,228 5 318,352
Receivables for disbursemeants made on behall of clients 170,621 145,760
Less: provision for expected credit lossas = -
-3 491,849 5 464,112

Fee incoms receivables include amounts thal are past due at the end of the reporting perniod for which
the Coempany has net recognised a provision for expected credit losses as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and amounts are still considerad recoverable. In determining the
racovarablity of the fee income receivables, the Company considars any change in the credit quality
of the recaivables from the date the credit was initially granted up to the end of the reporting period.

Age of fee income receivables that are past due but not impairad

_— 2013 , 2018
91 to 180 days 3 15,005 5 -
181 to 360 days 127,120 110,408
Civer 360 days BD,828 49,462
Total — past due but not impaired 5 202,951 3 158,871
Maovemnents in the pravision for expected credit lossas were as fallows:
2018 2018
Balance at baginning of year 5 - 3 -
Impairment losses reversad - i
Amounts written off during the year as uncollectible {1,145) (7
Increase in provision 1,145 7
Batance at end of year $ - ]

To reduce exposung to cradit nsk, the Company reviews the credit quality of its custemers and defines
credit [imis as pard of is anboarding process, Credit quality and limits of the receivables portfolio are
reviewed on an ongoing basis throughout the year.

Page 12

152/206



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

MNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018

{expressed i Unted Slales dollars) feenfinued)

5. DEPOSITORS' ACCOUNTS

Depositors’ acocunts ane classified as follows:

2019 2018
Call deposits § 4322382 5§ 6,107,009
Fixed deposits 2,603,671 3.385 449
3 6,926,053 i 9,456 458
6. FIXED ASSETS
Furnitura and
computer
equipment Matar vehiclas Total
Cost
Balance at December 31, 2017 5 572,247 5 372854 §  1,245101
Additions 35,957 = 35,857
Disposals (183,572) - {183.572)
Balance at December 31, 2018 B24 532 372,854 1,197,485
Additions 11,299 - 11,289
Disposals (94.051) 7 (94,051}
Batance at Decemnber 31, 2018 _ VT41BBO 372,854 1114734
Accumulated depreciation:
Balance at December 31, 2017 829,577 187,195 1,028,772
Depreciation expense 78,472 60,644 139118
Disposals (183,178) = {18317
Balance at December 31, 2018 724,870 257 B39 0H2. 709
Depreciation expense 26,506 21,884 45 380
Disposals (93.878) = (03 878)
Balance at Decembar 31, 2018 B57,498 279,723 437,221
et bock value, December 31, 2018 3 99,762 3 115015 § 214,777
Met book value, December 31, 2019 5 84382 5 93131 § 177,513

During the year ended December 31, 2019, computer equipment with a net book value of $173 was
disposed, resulting in & loss of $173. During the year ended December 31, 2018, comouter equipment
with a net book vaiue of $393 was disposed, resulting in a loss of $393
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.
Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018
fexprassed in Uniled Siales dollars) {continued)

7. SHARE CAPITAL

2019 2018
fwthorized:
10,000,000 Crdinary voting shares of 1 par value sach
Issued:
2,000,000 Crdinary voting shares {2018: 2.000,000) § 2000000 $ 2000000

The Directors may declare dividends and distributions on shares in issua and authorise payrment of the
dividends or distributions cut of the funds of the Company. Mo dividend or distribulion shall be paid
except ouf of the realised or unrealised profits ¢f the Company. The rights conferred upan the holders
of the shares of any class issued with preferred or other rights shall not, unless otherwise expressly
provided by the terms of issue of the shares of that cdass, be deemed to be vared by the creation or
issue of further shares rarking par passu therewith,

B. SUBSIDIARIES

The consoldated fnancial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholiy-cwned
subsidiaries, Tilly Momirees Limited and Couitry Directors Lid., and Tilly Mominees Limited, in turn, is
parent to twa wholly-owned subsidiaries, Tilly Directors Limited and Tilly Secretaries Limited (colleclively,
the "Subsidiaries”). All of the subsidiares I'sted below are licensed as Nominee (Trust) Companies with

CIMA,
Place of Preportion of awnarship
Principal incarparation interest and voting power
Name of subsidlary activity _ and operation held by the Campany
2018 208
Provide nominee
Tilly Neminees Limited  shareholder services  Cayman Islands 100% 100%
Provide corporate
Cauliry Directors Ltd director sarvices  Cayman Islands 100% 100%
Provide corporate
Tilty Diractors Limited director services  Cayman Islands 100% 100%
Provide company
Tilly Secretaries Limited secratary services  Cayman Islands 100% 1009

The Company has not provided financial support to its Subsidianes during the year, nor does it intend to
provide financial or other support. There are no significant restrictions on the Company’s ability to access
or use assals o selle labites of the Subsidizries.

As of December 31, 2019, guarantees in the total amount of $575 610 (2015: 3575,610) have been issued
by the Company to the Government of the Cayman |slands on behalf of its Subsidiaries
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2018

{expressed in United States doflars) {continued)

9. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Included in the consoiidated finarcial statements are the following releted party balances amd

fransactons:
2019 2018
Az of Decamber 31:
Due from clients 1,044 288 1,108, 852
Client accounts receivable 2,280 1,928
Depositors’ accounts 1,813,355 1,438,707
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 55681 164
For the years ended December 31;
Directorship, rustes and management fees 238,600 238 800
Directors’ fees (incleded in Administration expensas) 23,000 25,000
Rant expanse 351,481 361,481

All tranvsactions with related parties are conducted on normal commercial temms and at non-prefarential
interest rates,

Certain employees of the Company and cenain assets of the Company are also utilised by the Parent
for its cngoing operations. The employees' servicas and use of the assets is currantly not recharged ta
the Parant.

Some of the Company’s employees are also providing directorship services to @ number of clients who
have deposits and cverdrafts with the Company.

The Company leases office space from a related party.  The arnual lease expired on
August 31, 2011, The Company is currently leasing the space on a month to manth basks based on
the prior lease agreement.

10. PENSION PLAN

The Company has a defined contribution pension scheme in place for ail of its qualfying employess.
Confributions are calculated as a percentage of salary based on the prescrbed maximum of 5% and
are matched by the Company. The Company pays the employees’ portion.  The total pension cost
recognised during the year ended Docember 31, 2019 was $149,568 (2018 $159,712) and is included
in salaries and benefits in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income.
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018
(expressed i Uniled Slates dollars) {zontinued)

11. RISK MANAGEMENT

A financial instrument is a contract that gives rise 1o a financial asset of ane entity and a finarcial [@3bility
of another entity. The Company enters into contracts involving financial instruments during the normal
course of ils business.

Risgk expogures arising from financial instruments are monitored by management. The main risks
ariging from the Company’s financial instruments are credit and counterparty risk, Bguidity risk and
market risk. The exposure o, and management of, these nsks is summarised below. The year-end
figures reported in these consoldated fSnancial statements for financial mstruments are reflective of the
position held throughout the year and are consistent with the objectives, policies and sirategies
approved by managemeant.

Cradit and counterparty risk

Cradit and courterparty risk is the risk that one pay (o a financial instrument will cause a fingncial loss
far the other party by failing to discharge an ebligation. Financial instruments which potentialiy expose
the Company to credit and counterparty risk consist primarity of cash and cash eguivalents, due from
bank on ime deposit, due from clients ang client aceounts recaivabhe

The Company manages its axposure to credit and counterparty risk by placing cash, fixed deposits,
and time deposits with a regulated finarcial institution in the Cayman Islands, only taking refered
business, and monitaing outstanding receivable balances, as discussad in Note 4

The Company has a concentration risk with all cash and cash equivalents and due from bark on time
depasit being held by one financial institution in the Cayman Islands,

During the year ended December 31, 2019, approximately 43% (2018 33%) of the Company's
diractarship, trustes and management feas ware earmed from its three (2018; two) largest customers.
Mo other customers contributed more than 10% to the Company's directorship, trustee and
management fees during 2018 or 2018,

Liguidity risk
Liguidity risk is the rigk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with
financial liabilities,

The Company's objective is to maintain deposkors’ accounts which have a range of malurities
consistent with its asset base. Liquidity risk is monitored by the Company's managament lo ensura
that the Campany has sufficient liquid assets to be able 1o meet its fulure expected cash outiows. The
Company endeavors to match the terms of its llabilities and assets, primarily cash and cash equivalents,
fixed deposits and the depositors’ accounts, and maintains a significant proportian of its assets in cash
in order 1o manage liquidity risk. Refer to interest rate risk table disclosures for analysis of liquidity gap.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or fulure cash flows of a financial instrument will Mucluate
because of changes in market prices. Market risk for the Company comprises interest rate risk and
Cumency fisk.
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST CONMPANY LTD.
Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2013
{expresssd in Uniled Stales dollars) [continued)

11, RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Interost rate risk

Interest rate risk is the rigk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrurment will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.

The Company manages its interest rate risk by ensuring that the interest rale on assels (l.e, cash, due
from bank on tme deposit, and due from clients) equals or exceeds that of the relevan: offsetling Eability
{i.e. depositors’ accounts). The lables below summarise this matching as of December 31, 2019 and
2018. Itemng ane allocated to time bands by referance fo the earlier of the nest interest rate re-pricing
date and the maturily dale.

2019
Effective
Interest
Rate Less than  Greatar than
of Range (%] _ On demand 3 months 3 months Total
Monotary Assots:
Cash and cash equivaients 085w 055 § 4825137 § SE1AD4z 3 - 8 10242079
Crae from bank an e deposit - % - - .
D Trosm edianite 529 1.082310 1052219
LClienl accounts recehabls - 451848 - - 491,849
Dther racaboablas - 5438 - . €433
5 BiTER4Y 5 EGIG042 3§ - 5 11790585
Monétary Liabilties:
Dppositors’ accounts 000020 5 4322382 5 26006T § - & 6828053
Ascounts payable end accnued
Expanses - 478.758 - — 4TB. TS
§ 4501140 5 ZEDAET1 § - % TAL4EN
SansHivityliguidity gap § 1374503 5 3003771 § = 5 A3ATTT4
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018

(expressed in Uniled Slales dollars) {cantinuad)

11. RISK MANAGEMENT {coniinued)

lnteras! rate risk (continoed)
2018:
Effactive
Inberest
Rate Less than Greater than
or Range (%) On demand 3 months 3 mornths Total
Monetary Assets:
Cash and sash equaients L75wi8l § 4528458 5 G15B481 3§ - % 10.788.850
Due from bank on tma deposd 1.05 - 2,000, 00d = 2.000.000
Due from chents 4,45t 526 1112287 - 1112237
Chent accounts receivable Ni& 464,112 - 454,112
Canef recelvaties i, 11,511 e G T 1 ' 1 | |
§ G216360 5 8168401 § - % 14374850
Maonatany Liabilitioes:
Capositors’ accounts 60065 § GU0T006 § 3360449 § = § 5498458
Accounts payabls and scerued
Bxpenes oA, 483,573 - . 458 573
§ E5O5581 & 3365448 % - § 5885051
Sensitivityliguidity gap § (33 § 4TEO0MD § . 4 AE0 BEG

The Company is exposed to risks associated with the effects of fluctuations in prevailing levels of fixed
and Boaling interast rates on its cash flows.

At Decernber 31, 2018, if markot interest rates had been 30 (2018: 30) basis points higherflower with
all other wvarlables held constant, shareholders equity would have been 54,085 higher/ower
(2018: 51088 lowerhigher), respectively, with respect to floating interest rate exposure. At
December 31, 2019, if market intarest rates had bean 30 (2018: 30) basis points higher/lower with all
other variables held constant, sharehalder's equity would have been 58,040 higherfower {2018
514 307 higherfower), respactively, with respect to fived interest rate exposure,

This analysis is based on interest bearing instruments held at year-end, and assumes the change in
interest rates tock place at the beginning of the yeer and the interest bearing instruments were held
constant throughout the reporting peniod. Thirty basis points is the sensitivity rate used when reporing
interest rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents managemeant’s assessment
of the possible changs in market rates for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018,
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018

{exprezsed in Uniled States doflars) (continued)

11. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluchuate due to changes in foreign
gxchange rales.

The Caompany cperates in the Cayman Islands, and mainly ho'ds instruments with net exposures to the
follywing currencies: Great Britain pound, Japanese yen, Cayman |slands dollar, Canadian dollar, Euro
and Norwegian kroner. Since the Campany prepares its financial statements in United States dallars,
the Company's consolidated statements of financizl position are affected by movements in the
exchange rates of these currencies and the United States dollar, except the Cayman Islands dollar
which has 2 fixed exchanga rate against the United States dollar. Translation gairsfiosses arising from
these exposures are reported net in the consolidated statements of comprehensive incoma

The table below shows the Company’s currency exposures being those transactional exposures that
give rise o the nel currency gains and losses recognised in the consolidated staternents of
comprehensive income, Such exposures compnise the monetary liabilies of the Company that are not
demominated in either the presentation currency of a currency with a fived rate of exchange to the
presentation currency of the Company. The Company manages ils cumrency risk by ensuring that
forzign currency sssels and liabilities approximately net against each other. As of Dacember 31, 2019
and 2018, these expasures ware as lollows:

Significant net foreign currency manetary assets, December 31. 2015 and 2018 (franslated into United

Siatas dollars):
2013

Met foraign
Cash and cash Depositors’  currency monetary
equivalents  accounts _ azsets
EUR 3 8156 % [2.768) 5,388
GBP 55,90 12,546} 53,355
MOK 2 H >
JPY - F F
CaAD - z %
3 64,057 5 (5,314) § £8,743
Page 19
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018

{axpressed in United States dollars) {continued)

11. REEK MANAGEMENT {continued)

Curreney risk (continued)
2018

Met foreign
Cash and cash Depositars'  currancy monetary
equivalants accounts assats
EUR ] 50400 3§ (45,001 % 5,309
GBP 1,284,772 {1,234,1186) 506585
MOK 12,236 {12) 12224
JPY 5,154 {4,354) 750
caD 1,445 {312) 1,133
] 1,354,007 5 {1,283,B85) 35 70,112

Had the Unitad States dollar been strongsr or weaker by 10% against the relevant foreign currencies
with all ather variables held constant, the nat result for the year ended December 31, 2019 would
decrease ar increase by 55,874 (2018; 57.011).

12. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company managas its capital ta ansure that the Company will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximising the return to the sharsholder through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Company’s overall strategy remains unchanged from 2018,

The capital structure of the Company consists of issued Ordinary voling shares and retained eamings.
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018
{sxpressed in United Siales dollars) [cartinued)

13. REGULATORY MATTERS

Tha Company is subject to regulatery capital requirements established by CiMA,  Failure to mast
minimum capital requirements can iniiate certain aclions by the regulatar that, if undedaken, coukd
have a direct material effect on the Company's consolidated financial statements.  Under capital
adequacy guidelines used by CIMA and prescnbed under The Banks and Trust Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands, the Company must meet specific capital guidelines that invehe guantitetive measures
of the Company’s assels, liabiities, and certain off-balance shest items as calculated urder regulatory
accounting practees. The Company's capital amaunts and classification are also subject to qualitative
judgrnents by CIMA about components and risk weightings.,

The Company is required at all tmes o maintain a capital adequacy ratio of at least 15% according to
current regulaticn and the provigions of s Banking license, The Company is in compliance with this
requirament as at and for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2018

Under the terms of its licenses, the Company is required to maintain @ minimum net werth af

KYDa00 000 (US3500,000). The Company is in compliance with this requirement as at and for the
years ended Decamber 31, 2018 and 2018,

14. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain of the prior year figures have been reclassified 1o conform with the financial siatements
presentation adopted in the current year

15. APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consclidated financial statements were approved by a committes of the Board of Direciors and
authorised for issue on March 19 2020,
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Independent Auditor's Report

To CIBC Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
not initsindividual capacity but solely as Trustee of Globa High Yield Bond Fund Currency Selection,
aseriestrust of DIAM Cayman Trust

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Global High
Yield Bond Fund Currency Selection (the “Class Fund”), a series trust of DIAM Cayman Trust as at January 31,
2020, and itsfinancial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards.

What we have audited

The Class Fund' s financial statements comprise:

e the statement of financial position as at January 31, 2020;

e the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

e the statement of changesin net assets attributabl e to unitholders for the year then ended;

e the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

e thenotesto the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Basisfor opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAS). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section
of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Class Fund in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants
Code of Ethicsfor Professional Accountants (IESBA Code). We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilitiesin
accordance with the IESBA Code.

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Class Fund's ability to continue as
agoing concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Class Fund or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.
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Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the financial statements as awhole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAswill aways detect amaterial misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with |SAs, we exercise professiona judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion. Therisk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Class Fund's internal control.

e  Evauate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonabl eness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’ s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Class Fund's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosuresin the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Class Fund to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evauate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficienciesin interna control that we identify
during our audit.
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Other Matter

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the Class Fund in accordance with the terms of
our engagement letter and for no other purpose.  We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility
for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save
where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Cayman Islands

June 12, 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR*S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of
Queensgate Bank and Trust Company Ltd.

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Queensgate Bank and Trust Company Ltd. and its
subsidiaries (the "Company'), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as at
December 31, 2019 and 2018, and the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, changes in
shareholder®s equity and cash flows for the years then ended (all expressed in United States Dollars),
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2019 and 2018, and its financial
performance, its changes in equity and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSS).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor®s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company
in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants® Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company*s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company*s financial reporting process.

Auditor®s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor®s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting fromerror, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company®s internal control.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management”s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company®s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor”s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor®s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Deloitte & Touche
March 19, 2020
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